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		  Vision & Mission

Our Vision
					     To be the leading state organization in the Asian region for life skill 	
					     development of the youth. 

Our Mission
	

To produce knowledgeable, competent, skillful 
and energetic youth enriched with resilience 
and courage to fill the skill gap of the future 
professionals to contribute towards varied and 
resourceful youth development in Sri Lanka.
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Objectives	
•	 To develop the life skills and personality of both male and female youth.

•	 To provide vocational education, vocational training and the referral to employment oppor-
tunities.

 
Major Duties
•	 To organize the activities related to the recruitment of male and female cadets for the   Life 

Skill Course of the National Youth Corps and make recruitments thereto.

•	 To map out the Life Skill Course appropriately and see to its implementation.

•	 To conduct the Information Technology Course and the English Language Course.

•	 To direct the male and female youth completing the Life Skill Course to vocational training 
and arrange for their job placements.

•	 To provide life skill training to external parties in addition to the internal male and female 
cadets.

•	 To see to the conduct of the hotel school and the courses of training in relation thereto.

•	 To make a contribution towards the improvement of both aesthetic skills and sports skills 
of the male and female youth.

•	 To ensure the proper implementation of the management of physical resources in the 
organization.



	 Message of the Chairman
I presume it correct to call the year 2021 as an explorative year for the National Youth Corps to try out new experiments. The first 
half of the year 2021 can be identified as the peak hour of the Covid 19 pandemic our country was faced with alongside the entire 
world from the month of March 2020 onwards. The training activities of the National Youth Corps during the year 2021 could not 
get underway as planned as a result of the clamping down of the quarantine curfew throughout the entire island, lockdown of the 
areas earmarked as zones where the pandemic was rampant, imposition of the travel and movement restrictions and the banning 
of collective activities such as training sessions in order to prevent people from congregating, in keeping with the health guidelines.

Nonetheless, the National Youth Corps took note of the lessons it learnt in 2020 and adopted the following strategies to overcome 
the challenges during the year 2021.

a.  Dissemination of the identified subject areas of life skill training to the trainees via online modes.

b.  Provision of facilities to the trainees via online modes for studying the subjects of IT and English.

c. Introduction of a series of social empowerment programmes undertaken with the contribution of trainees in order that they 
could learn and take part in life skill activities from their own homes.

In particular, during the year 2021, the teaching of the subjects of Information Technology and English Language was undertaken 
in liaison with the Sri Lanka International Buddhist Academy, a higher education institute recognized by the University Grants 
Commission, and the Learning Management System of the said institute – SIBA Black Board, paved the way for facilitating the 
trainees of this Corps in that direction. Accordingly, 1787 trainees were given free data for their learning activities through the 
online method with data SIMs made available to them free of charge. 

Even though it was difficult to convey certain components in the life skill curriculum to the trainees through online methods 
(especially the practical subject areas), it is a matter to be appreciated that the panel of instructors of the training centres of the 
Corps worked towards trying out alternative methods in this exercise, using the resources at hand.

Following programmes in particular were hosted for the trainees through online methods with guidance necessary for practising 
life skills in a home-based environment so that they could continue to train themselves and thereby availing them the opportunity 
to enjoy life by means of making them occupied with activities during the period of Covid outbreak with a view to preventing the 
youth from idling at home in a state of stressful mentality whilst gaining a novel experience in life.

•	 Friendly Care for Animals – is a programme meant to provide food and care for helpless and sick animals in public places 
such as roadsides or shopping areas.

•	 Y - Green Agro Cultivation Programme – is a cultivation programme encompassing the premises of the training centre 
level as well as the compounds of the homes of the trainees level.

•	 ‘Susumata Saviyak’ (Strength to Breath) Disaster Development Programme – is a programme meant to provide relief to 
the victims of natural or other calamities by coming forward in an organized way voluntarily. 

•	 ‘Lifeline to Life’ Blood Donation Campaign – is a programme implemented with community participation as demanded 
by the hospital care services.

•	 National Reconciliation Youth Exchange Programme - is a cultural programme for promoting friendship, amity and 
brotherhood among ethnicities and nations.

Also, I am happy that it was possible to give effect to the social care programme of constructing 55 houses, one house each by the 
55 National Youth Corps Training Centres situated across the island under the 'Senehe Piyasa' housing development project which 
was set in motion with the aim of expanding the range of experience of the trainees of the Corps, mastering their art of dealing 
with the society, developing their attitudes and evoking feelings about national duty and service, whilst being in engagement of 
building a house for a low-income family in need of help for shelter.

Making the National Youth Corps training centres including the ones at Wellawaya, Nuwara Eliya, Gampola and the Hotel Training 
School at Dambulla readily available for the treatment and quarantine centres meant for Corona patients was an opportunity that 
manifested the utmost commitment and the   organizational strength of the National Youth Corps in the event of a national need. 
I also greatly appreciate the cooperation extended by the male and female youth, the staff, the parents and the residents of the 
respective localities in transforming the said training centres into full-fledged treatment facilities.

The capability we possessed in seeing to the successful completion of the 10,000 beds in 10 days project 
in a shorter period of time of 06 days, an effort which was given effect to with the aim of providing 
10,000 beds to the hospital system that were in short supply during the time of administering treatment 
to the Corona patients in the face of the pandemic situation that was prevalent was a fulfilment of the 
duty and responsibility we owed towards the nation.

However, even in the midst of the Covid 19 pandemic, it is an achievement that we have been able 
to accomplish in carrying out a substantial part of the work during the year to equip the young 
generation with life skills and to transform them into a societal group fond of the country and 
the nation. I would like to express my thankfulness to the entire staff including the Secretary of 
the Ministry of Youth and Sports and the Board of Directors and all members of the staff of the 
National Youth Corps for their cooperation and commitments towards that end.

I hope that the year 2022 will be an auspicious year that will usher in strength and courage 
leading to a prosperous future that further empowers the Sri Lankan youth.

Col. Dharshana Ratnayake, RWP, RSP

Chairman- National Youth Corps
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1. National Youth Corps

The National Youth Corps coming under the purview of the Ministry of Youth and Sports is a national 
institution established by an Act of Parliament No. 21 of 2002 with the objective of the development of 
youth, job training and vocational education.

As at present, the National Youth Corps is working as the only government institution providing “life 
skill training” for youth development, integrating with the “Vistas of Prosperity” of the country’s national 
policy framework. Other social phenomena coupled with the competitive nature of the existing education 
system have discouraged the development of life skills in the youth. Therefore, the aspirations for the 
prosperous future of the youth have been recognized as the primary role of the National Youth Corps in 
order to transmit the future work world and the life skills to the youth.

To fulfil these national tasks, the National Youth Corps has an operational headquarters in Colombo, 
provincial offices numbering 09 centred around the nine provinces and a network of 55 training centres.

The Preliminary Course of the National Youth Corps consists of two parts. The first three months have 
been reserved for life skills training. During the period of the second three months, practical training is 
provided on the subjects of Information Technology and English Language. In this exercise, competence 
in handling Computer Technology as well as English Language is given to the young men and women.

Young cadets who successfully complete the life skill course will be directed to a recognized vocational 
training institute in the public or private sector for appropriate vocational training based on the skills, 
abilities and interests of each youth according to the method of vocational guidelines. In this connection, 
a scholarship for pursuing a professional training course worth up to one hundred thousand rupees will 
be awarded to young men and women who show a high level of performance in the preliminary course. 
Moreover, the National Youth Corps provides necessary guidance and facilities to all male cadets / female 
cadets who complete the duel preliminary courses for gaining vocational training.

In addition to the life skill training centres, the National Youth Corps has established the Hotel Training 
School in the area of Dambulla. The Hotel Training School conducts courses for the trainees who complete 
the basic course and the candidates directly applying for the training in hotel sector. For the trainees 
taking part in the course directly, the preliminary life skill training will be provided in parallel to the hotel 
training course.

Efficiency in the world of work is very vital element in order to increase the national production and the 
productivity of the country, and for that purpose, the development of life skills in the individual is an 
invariable aspect. All those who enter the job market after completing the general education and the 
higher education will be able to achieve the desired workplace efficiency through the job placements 
following the conclusion of the life skill training of the National Youth Corps. The future plans of the 
National Youth Corps deemed necessary for that purpose are being drawn out from the year 2021 
onwards.

In spite of the fact that the implementation of the life skill training programmes as planned out was 
a problem with the outbreak of Covid 19 pandemic nationally and globally during the year 2021, it 
was possible to conduct the programmes through the methods of online education, taking it up as a 
challenge. The National Youth Corps is also in readiness to actively apply the lessons learnt during that 
period towards further development of the youth of this country.
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1.1	Administration of the National Youth Corps
The National Youth Corps which has been established by the Act of Parliament No. 21 of 
2002, is governed by a five-member council appointed by the subject Minister in charge 
of the Ministry of Youth and Sports.

1.2 National Youth Corps Council 
The National Youth Corps Council is appointed by the Minister in such a manner as to comprise five 
members selected from among persons who have knowledge and experience in the fields of youth 
development, employment and education, one out of which should be a female representative. 
Furthermore, section 2 of the Youth Corps Act specifies that the Minister shall appoint one person out of 
those 05 members as the Chairman of the Council. The term of office of the members shall be 03 years.

The Council is bound to exercise the following powers.

a.	 To draw out plans and programmes for the National Youth Corps.

b.	 To regulate and report on the implementation of the plans and programmes approved by the 
Minister in accordance with the framework that was formulated.

c.	 To supervise the training of members of the youth corps.

d.	 To specify the conditions applicable to the training and efficiency of the members of the corps 
and the degree of proficiency to be acquired by the trainee, in consultation with the Director of Youth 
Corps. 

Members of the National Youth Corps Council for the year 2021

● Mr. Chandraratna Pallegama 		  -	 Member
Additional Secretary (Administration and Procurement), Ministry of Youth and Sports

● Dr. Charminda Abeysingha 	                  	 -	 Member
(Senior Lecturer, University of Kelaniya)

● Dr. Mrs. E.A.D. Anusha Edirisingha              	-	 Member
(Senior Lecturer, University of Kelaniya)

● Dr. M.A.M.C.S. Siriwardena                          	 -	 Member
● Mr. Asanka Maithriratna		           	 -	 Member
Treasury Representative 

● Mr. M.R.V.R. Meepura 	            		  -	 Member
Treasury Representative

Additional Director General (Acting)

Department of Public Enterprises, Ministry of Finance 

● Mr. Tanesh Bernard Dias        		  -	 Member
Head of Human Resources 

Board of Control for Cricket in Sri Lanka
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2. Institutional Structure
The National Youth Corps consists of a Youth Corps Headquarters Office, 09 Provincial Offices, 55 Training 
Centers, an Outbound Training Center and a Hotel Training School.

The Department of Management Services has approved a cadre including the Director of the National 
Youth Corps and the said personnel consists of a permanent cadre and a staff on a contract basis.

The staff on contract comprises legally discharged or retired personnel who have served in the armed 
forces and includes officers of the National Cadet Corps for duties in the Youth Corps on a secondment 
basis

   
2.1 Director / Chairman

The Director of the Youth Corps is appointed by the Minister in charge of the respective subject and holds 
the full responsibility over the administration, training, disciplinary matters and efficiency of the Youth 
Corps.
Section 08 of the Act spells out that the Director of the Corps shall,
a)	 Give effect to the decisions of the Council and ensure that the decisions of the   Council are given 
effect to;  
b)	 Furnish to the Council such information as it may require for the exercise, performance and 
discharge of its powers, duties and functions.

 

2.1.1 Divisions in operation under the direct supervision of the Director of Youth 
Corps 

In order to maintain the affairs of the Youth Corps Council in an orderly manner, the Legal and Internal 
Audit Divisions are in operation under the direct supervision of the Director of Youth Corps. 

  	 Council Secretary / Legal Officer

These officers with the assistance from their respective staffs carry out their duties such as the convening 
of the Youth Corps Council, the tabling of the council papers presented by the respective Divisions to 
the Council, forwarding the decisions made by the Council on the papers approved by it to the relevant 
Divisions and the officers concerned, attending to coordination work of all Council members including the 
taking up of minutes of the Council meetings and attending to all legal and judicial matters and representing 
the Youth Corps in such affairs under the direct supervision of the Director of Youth Corps.

	 Internal Audit Division
The Internal Audit Division, consisting of a staff under the Internal Audit Officer, is in operation under the 
direct supervision of the Director of Youth Corps and the respective audits are carried out by this Division 
at the Youth Corps Headquarters and all training centers and the audit queries arising from such audits 
are duly raised wherever necessary.
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2.1.2 Board of Directors

The Youth Corps Headquarters constitutes a staff inclusive of the Chairman / Director, 02 Additional 
Directors, 05 Assistant Directors and the Council Secretary / Legal Officer. In addition, 02 posts as 
Additional Director (Planning) and Assistant Director (Planning) have been approved during the year 
2016 for the National Youth Corps Headquarters for a period of 03 years on a temporary basis. As such, 
the operational divisions of the Youth Corps Headquarters are as follows.

Additional Director (Administration and Finance) 
Administration Division - Assistant Director (Administration)

A Human Resources Unit, a Procurement Unit, a Transport Unit and a Construction and Maintenance Unit 
are in operation under the Assistant Director (Administration) and a staff inclusive of the Administrative 
Officer, the Technical Officer and the Chief Management Assistant does contribute its services for this 
purpose. The primary functions of this Division are to engage in human resource development work 
including the work associated with the availability of cadre approval, the staff recruitment and the staff 
transfers and also, to provide necessary facilities to carry on the training course including the development 
of infrastructure facilities at the headquarters and the training centers.

Finance Division - Assistant Director (Finance)

An Accounts Unit, a Finance Unit and a Stores Unit are in operation under the Assistant Director (Finance) 
and a staff inclusive of a Stores Officer does contribute its services for this purpose. The primary functions 
of this Division are to engage in all payment matters including the payment of staff salaries and allowances, 
upkeep of all documents related to accounting, preparation of annual reports of accounts and maintenance 
of all stores work including the distribution of goods required by the training centers. 

Additional Director (Training and Development)  
Training Division - Assistant Director (Training)

The Training Division and the Vocational Training and NVQ Units are in operation under the Assistant 
Director (Training), and a staff inclusive of supervisory officers does contribute their services for this 
purpose. The Training Division handles all work associated with the preliminary training course conducted 
in the training centers, capacity building and leadership worksops for external institutions and school 
prefects and training of instructors and staffs.	

Development Division - Assistant Director (Development)

The Development Division functions under the Assistant Director (Development) and a staff inclusive of 
supervisory officers does contribute their services for this purpose. Primary duties of this Division involve 
the recruitment of trainees to the training centers, the organization work of various programmes such as art 
festivals, sport meets, quiz contests and community care programmes and the work involving the passing 
out ceremonies and also, the matters pertaining to the issuance of certificates to the trainees and referral 
of trainees completing the life skill course to vocational training and their coordination work.
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Operations Division - Assistant Director (Operations) 

Information Technology and Media Units are in operation under the Assistant Director (Operations) and a staff inclusive 
of a supervisory officer does contribute their services for this purpose. The primary functions of this Division are to 
attend to the networking of the headquarters and all training centers as a single network and its maintenance, set 
up updates and maintain the website of the Youth Corps, look into the IT needs of the headquarters and the training 
centers and also, to meet all media needs of the Youth Corps.

 
Additional Director (Planning) and Assistant Director (Planning)

Two posts as Additional Director (Planning) and Assistant Director (Planning) were approved in September 2016 for 
a period of 03 years on a temporary basis for the purpose of attending to duties of the pilot project that got underway 
during the year 2016 and the schemes of recruitment for the same were met with approval in November 2016. During 
the year 2017, an officer from the Sri Lanka Navy was recruited on a secondment basis for the post of Assistant 
Director (Planning) and the construction of the new training centers was carried out under his supervision. A senior 
officer of the National Cadet Corps is attending to the duties of the post of Director, Planning during the year 2021.

2.2 Band of the National Youth Corps
The National Youth Corps is in possession of a western band equipped with all modern musical instruments and the 
officers who have retired from service as members of the bands of the three armed forces and reemployed for the 
positions of Drill Instructors in the Youth Corps operate as musicians of this band.

This band is deployed for the events including the passing out parades of the Youth Corps trainees and the ensemble 
also takes part in the National Independence Day celebration parade along with the trainees of the Youth Corps.
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Approved Cadre in the year 2021

Post Salary Code 
Approved Cadre 

Perma-
nent  Contract Tempo-

rary Vacancies Redun-
dant

Permanent 

Director HM 1 - 3 1
Additional Director (Administration & 
Finance) HM 1 - 1 1

Additional Director (Training & 
Development) HM 1 - 1 1

Assistant Director (Administration) MM 1 - 1 1 1

Asst. Director (Finance) MM 1 - 1 1
Assistant Director (Training) MM 1 - 1 1
Assistant Director (Development) MM 1 - 1 1
Assistant Director (Operations) MM 1 - 1 1
Council Secretary / Legal Officer MM 1 - 1 1
Plans Liaison Officer JM 1 - 1 1 1

Internal Audit Officer JM 1 - 1 1
Administrative Officer JM 1 - 1 1
Stores Officer JM 1 - 1 1
Technical Officer JM 1 - 1 1
Administrative Officer (Human 
Resources) JM 1 - 1 1

Procurement Officer JM 1 - 1 1
Transport Officer JM 1 - 1 1
Accounts Officer JM 1 - 1 1
Network Administration Officer JM 1 - 1 1
Development Assistant MA 3 160 11

Aesthetics Instructor MA 1 - 1 20 3

Management Assistant MA 1 - 1 102 1 4

Tamil Translator MA 1 - 1 6 5

Instructor (Tamil) MA 1 - 1 57 24

Instructor (IT) MA 1 - 1 59 5

Instructor (English) MA 1 - 1 58 11

Drill/Discipline Instructor MA 1 - 1 88 4

Driver PL 3 7 1

Messenger PL 3 1
Electrician PL 3 1
KKS PL 1 33 1 3

Store Keeper PL 1 39 3

Page 6



Post Salary Code Approved Cadre

Permanent  Contract Temporary 

Contract

Assistant Director  
(Provincial)

MM 1 - 1
9

Officer in Charge  
of the Centers

JM 1 - 1
58

Assistant Officer in 
Charge of the Centers

JM 1 - 1
59

Instructor (Drill) MA 1 - 1 171

Total
649 297 4

950
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3. Network of Provinces and Training Centers	

The training of youth cadets gets into gear at 55 training centers belonging to the National Youth Corps 
centered around the Headquarters of the National Youth Corps. The manner in which the training centers 
have been spanned out throughout the provinces is as follows.

Province No. of Training centers

Western 05

Central 06

Southern 09

North Western 08

Eastern 07

Northern 03

Uva 06

North Central 05

Sabaragamuwa 06

Total 55

09 provincial offices are functional under the National Youth Corps Headquarters whereas 55 centers are 
in operation under the supervision of 09 provincial offices.

3'1 m<d;a ld¾hd, yd mqyqKq uOHia:dk 
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Provincial Offices

Srl. No. Provincial  
Offices Address Tel. No.

1 Western

Office of the Director in Western 
Province, National Youth Corps 
Training Centre, Werellawatta, 
Yakkala.

0701278220

2 Central

Office of the Director in Central 
Province, National Youth Corps 
Training Centre, Sirimaluyana, 
Augustawatta, Kandy. 

0718457013

3 Southern
Office of the Director in Southern 
Province, National Youth Corps 
Training Centre, Bope, Galle.

0702587434

4 North Western

Office of the Director in North 
Western Province, National Youth 
Corps Training Centre, Courts 
Road, Wariyapola.

0718457013

5 North Central

Office of the Director in North 
Central Province, National Youth 
Corps Training Centre,  Mahaweli 
Side, Olukaranda, Kekirawa.

0718289004
025-9264180

6 Uva

Office of the Director in Uva 
Province, National Youth Corps 
Training Centre, Yalabowawatta, 
Wellawaya.

0770460352
057-2052393

7 Sabaragamuwa

Office of the Director in 
Sabaragamuwa Province, National 
Youth Corps Training Centre, 
Gangodawatta, Kegalle.

0702576555

8 Eastern

Office of the Director in Eastern 
Province, National Youth Corps 
Training Centre, Circular Road, 
Saddhapura, Trincomalee.

0712518825

9 Northern

Office of the Director in Northern 
Province,National Youth Corps 
Training Centre, Irattaperiyakulam, 
Vauniya.

0710889436
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Training Centers 

Srl. 
No. Province Training 

Center Address Tel. No.

1 Katunayake

Western

Dhammaloka Mawatha, Walana, Katunayake. 0112-260 020

2 Attanagalla Wathupitiwala, Attanagalla, Nittambuwa. 033-228 2232

3 Divulapitiya Walpita, Divulapitiya. 033-227 2875

4 Bulathsinhala National Youth Corps Training Center, 
Bulathsinhala. 034-228 2322

5 Yakkala Werellawatta, Yakkala. 033-223 3534

6 Gampola

Central

Nawalapitiya Road, Kudamake, Gampola. 081-207 8177

7 Naula Arangala, Naula. 066-224 6204

8 Nuwara Eliya Meepilimana, Ambewela, Nuwara Eliya.  052-353 6332

9 Walapane Harasbedda, Walapane. 052-205 0010

10 Senkadagala Sirimaluyana, Augustawatta, Kandy.  081-238 9134

11 Yatinuwara Yatinuwara, Pilapitiya, Muruthalawa. 081-241 0026

12 Galle

Southern

Wekunugoda, Bope, Galle. 091-223 3182

13 Neluwa Piyasena Gamage Building Complex, 
Ambalgedara, Neluwa.  091-309 8911

14 Akuressa Maramba, Akuressa. 041-313 1216

15 Weeraketiya Naigala, Hakuruela, Weeraketiya. 047-225 7143

16 Suriyawewa Central College Road, Suriyawewa. 047-228 8169

17 Akmeemana Kurunduwatta, Akmeemana. 091-312 1736

18 Dikwella Urugamuwa, Dikwella. 041-225 5055

19 Lunugamvehera Lunugamvehera, Thalawa. 047-223 9292

20 Weerawila National Youth Corps Training Center, 
Weerawila. 047-312 8444

21 Kuliyapitiya

North 
 Western

Degammedda, Wewagama, Kuliyapitiya.  037-228 3680

22 Wariyapola Courts Road, Wariyapola. 037-226 8375

23 Mawathagama Denvore Watta, Mawathagama. 037-229 8668

24 Panduwasnuwara Nugawela Junction, Panduwasnuwara. 037-229 1803

25 Dodangaslanda Alakolamada, Maduragoda, Dodangaslanda. 037-225 2655

26 Nattandiya Sagaragama, Nattandiya. 032-205 0815

27 Wennappuwa Ranaviru Kamalasiri Mawatha, Bolana, 
Waikkala. 031-227 7199

28 Alawwa Waligamuwa, Alawwa. 037-206 7885
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29 Kekirawa

North Central

Mahaweli Side, Olukaranda, Kekirawa. 025-226 3297

30 Kalawewa Galnewa, Bulnewa, Kalawewa. 025 -226 9946

31 Anuradhapura Mapaladikulam, Anuradhapura  025-385 2809

32 Medirigiriya Kavudulugama, Medirigiriya. 027-205 0477

33 Galenbindunuwewa Yakkala, Galenbindunuwewa. 025-225 8355

34 Bandarawela

Uva

Bindunuwewa, Bandarawela. 057-222 2214

35 Mahiyanganaya Mapakada, Mahiyanganaya. 055-225 7118

36 Thanamalwila Bodagama, Mahiyanganaya. 047-322 0529

37 Monaragala Weliyaya, Monaragala. 055-205 5741

38 Wellawaya Yalabowawatta, Wellawaya. 055-2274157

39 Siyambalanduwa 19th Mile, Pothuvil Road, Siyambalanduwa. 070-353 8292

40 Nivithigala

Sabaragamu-
wa 

Ambalandeniya, Watapotha Road, Nivithigala.  045-227 9970

41 Galigamuwa Asideniya, Galigamuwa Town, Galigamuwa. 035-228 2993

42 Embilipitiya ‘Gamuda’ Idama, Yodhagama, Embilipitiya.  047-226 2399

43 Kegalle Gangodawatta, Kegalle. 035- 222 3260

44 Balangoda Batugammana, Balangoda. 045- 312 9898 

45 Dehiovita Kanangama, Dehiovita. 036-226 7671

46 Ampara

Eastern

Education Administration Building, Uhana 
Road, Ampara. 063-222 4810

47 Seruwawila Seruwawila, Alioluwa, Serunuwara. 026-454 9439

48 Gomarankadawala Wilpanakulama, Gomarankadawala.  026-454 9428

49 Kuchchaweli Salapearu, Kuchchaweli. 026-222 8709

50 Trincomalee Circular Road, Saddhapura, Trincomalee. 026-454 9432

51 Dehiattakandiya Lihiniyagama, Damanawela, Dehiattakandiya. 027-205 6723

52 Valachchena 18th Post, Gandhinagar Road, Kalkuda, 
Valachchena. 065-312 1085

53 Mullaitivu

Northern

Wattuwakkal, Mullaitivu. 021-229 0428

54 Mannar Thaleimannar Road, Mannar. 023-225 1917

55 Vauniya Irattaperiyakulam, Vauniya. 024-205 4558
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3.2 Map of the Training Centers
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3.3  Facilities available in a Training Center 	
The training centers have been built in such a manner that the number of trainees 
between 150 and 250 can be accommodated and trained in a semester depending on 
the availability of space on the land and most of the training centers are equipped with 
the facilities as stated below.

-  An office

-  4 or 5 classrooms capable of accommodating 40 – 50 trainees for training

-  A lecture hall

-  A computer lab comprising 25 computers

-  A dining hall

-  A kitchen

-  Hostel facilities for trainees from far away areas

-  Changing rooms

-  A lavatory system for women and men

-  A playground

-  Inernet and telephone facilities

	 A training center has been assigned with a staff in the following manner.  

-  Officer in Charge of the Training Center			       	  -   	 01

-  Assistant Officer in Charge of the Training Center			   -    	 01

-  Development Assistant (Vocational Guidance Instructor)		   -	 02

-  Development Assistant (Personality Development Instructor)   	  -	 01

-  Development Assistant (Aesthetics Instructor)		      	  -	 01

-  Instructor (Information Technology)				     -	 01

-  Instructor (English) 							       -	 01

-  Instructor (Tamil)						       	  -	 01

-  Instructor (Drill)					           	   	  -          03

-  Management Assistant					       	  -	  01

-  Drill / Discipline Instructor 						       -	  02

-  Store Keeper							        -	  01 
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4. Progress Review - 2021
	 Progress review of the training, development and community programmes implemented 

during the year 2021 with the objective of youth development and vocational training is as 
set out below.

4.1 Life Skill Training (Training of young men and women)

A
ct

iv
ity

Projected Progress

Progress as a 
Percentage  Future Goal

Pr
og

ra
m

s

Pa
rt

ic
ip

at
io

n

Programs Participation

Female Male Total
Life Skill
Training 

110 10,000 110 4111 3935 8046 Programs 
100%

Participation 
80%

Three courses have 
been planned to be 
held during the year 
2022 and the plans 
are afoot to provide 
a certificate for the 
subjects of English 
Language and IT from 
the Buddhist University 
of Sri Lanka approved 
by the University Grants 
Commission

Note : The subject stream of English Language and Information Technology is included 
in the Life Skill Course which is operative as a six month course and the trainees are re-
ferred to vocational training at the conclusion of the Life Skill Course.
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 Life Skill Training (Training of young men and women)
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4.1.1 Information Technology and English Language Course 

Course Number 
Passed 

Number 
Passed as %

Level 01
Certificate Course in Information Technology       1339 95

Certificate Course in English Language       1314 96

Level 02
Advanced Certificate Course in Information Technology       1213 92

Advanced Certificate Course in English Language       1191 90

It was possible to offer an advanced certificate approved by the University Grants Commission 
to the trainees who have followed the Information Technology and English Language Course. 

Data SIMs for free data required for teaching activities through online modes were made 
available free of charge to 1787 trainees and the related teaching activities were conducted 
online through the Learning Management System, namely, SIBA Data SIMs – NYC Black Board.

Even though, 2329 male and female youth were registered for the first batch of the preliminary 
training course during the year 2021, the number of trainees who were linked with the courses 
was 1787 as of 05.06.2021. As it was not possible to get the general training activities in the 
training centres underway due to the state of Covid - 19 pandemic as per the health guidelines, 
action was taken to carry on with the basic training activities through online methods maintaining 
social distancing. Accordingly, the subjects of English Language and Information Technology 
conducted in collaboration with the International Buddhist Academy of Sri Lanka (SIBA) and 
also the subjects of personality development and career guidance, which are the core subjects 
of the preliminary course, were conducted via online methods. Therefore, it was possible in that 
way to organize an effective training opportunity for the community of youth in liaison with the 
Youth Corps, taking up the challenge to get on with the related training process in the face of 
the prevalent pandemic situation without putting the training activities on hold.

Participation

Targeted	 Progress
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The trainees also participated very enthusiastically in these online training sessions. It was also 
possible to facilitate training by providing a SIM card for the trainees to have access into the 
internet facilities they needed to participate in the training sessions. As such, arrangements were 
made to provide free data SIM cards to such trainees. According to the information received 
from the training centers, some trainees had left the courses due to finding employment for 
themselves and also, owing to various other personal reasons.

The Level 02 teaching content of the course consists of many practical activities. Therefore, 
it was not possible to put those activities into practice in the computer labs during the period 
of travel restrictions. Also, the trainees used their personal phones, computers and various 
internet access methods for following the courses as well as for the examination related 
activities. Various technical problems faced by the trainees in these efforts caused the number 
of candidates appearing for the examinations to be of a low proportion.

4.1.2 Referrals to Vocational Training

Projected (Units) Referrals to Vocational Training Progress %

3300 Trainees 716 22

4.1.3 Hotel Training Course

Projected 
(Units) Registered Trainees Progress %

Job Placements

No. of Job 
Placements %

400 Trainees
86 22 37 9'3



4.2 Special Life Skill Development Programmes

Activity
Projected Progress

As a %
Programs Participation Programs Participation

Training of 
School Pre-
fects

110 2500 9 548 Programs - 8%
Participation - 22%
(These programs 
could not be 
implemented due to 
temporary closure 
of schools over a 
long period of time 
because of the Covid 
pandemic situation.)

Multi-purpose 
Development 
Task Force 
Program 

2 39612
2

(Phase 11) 33084 Programs - 100%
Participation - 84%

4.3 Youth Development Programmes	

Activity
Projected Progress

Progress as a %
Programs Participation Programs Participation

Narcotic Drug 
Prevention 
Programmes

110 10,000 39 3520 Programs - 35% 
Participation - 35%

Sexually Transmitted 
Diseases (STD) Pre-
vention Programmes 110 10,000 39 1222 Programs - 35%  

Participation - 12%

Non Communicable 
Diseases (NCD) Pre-
vention Programmes  110 10,000 36 1143 Programs - 33%  

Participation - 11%

Community Develop-
ment Programmes 110 10,000 35 1040

Programs  - 32%  
Participation - 10%

Essay Competitions 
(Center level) 110 10,000 55 3762 Programs - 50%  

Participation - 38%
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Debate Contests 
(Center level) 110 10,000 55 3625 Programs - 50% 

Participation - 36%

Quiz Contests  
(Center level)  110 10,000 55 3701 Programs - 50%  

Participation - 37%

Disaster Management 
Programmes  
(Three day) 

110 10,000 55 3762 Programs - 50%  
Participation - 38%

Sport Meets  
(Center level) 110 10,000 51 6700 Programs - 46% 

Participation - 67%

‘Life Ladder’ – Tharuna 
Diviyata Harimaga - 
Programme 03 70 01 41 Programs –33% 

Participation - 59%

Arts Festival – (Na-
tional Level- 
Paurushabimani)

01 1150 01 1115
Programs - 100%

Participation - 97%

Passing out  
Ceremonies (National 
/ Center level)
(Note – 01) 

01 3000 54 3966 Programs - 100%
Participation - 132%

Referral of Trainees 
who were rehabilitat-
ed from narcotic drug 
addiction to  
Vocational Training

01 18 01 05 Programs - 100% 
Participation - 28%

Soft Skill Training  
Programme for 
Vocational Training 
Authority (VTA)

01 7000 01 10"825 Programs - 100% 
Participation - 155%

Note 01 : During the year 2021, it was scheduled to hold a passing out ceremony, but 
due to the Covid 19 pandemic situation throughout the year, the passing out ceremonies 
were arranged to be held at the centre level.

Owing to various reasons such as temporary closure of training centres, confinement of 
the educational activities to online modes and maintenance of personal distancing and 
the resultant inability to mobilise the male and female trainees for courses of training as 
a consequence of the Covid-19 situation during the period of the courses concerned, 
it was not possible to achieve the physical progress expected of the development 
programmes.
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4.4 Adventure Based Training (ABT)

Programme Achievements and 
Goals realized Future Goals Challenges

Adventure Based 
Training

10 trainees each from one 
centre who demonstrated 
a level of attributes were 
selected for the adventure 
based   training and 510 
trainees at the centre 
level have taken part in the 
adventure based training 
as of 31.12.2021. External 
trainees numbering 55 too 
underwent this course of 
ABT. 

To provide Adventure 
Based Training to the entire 
number of trainees at the 
training centres and to avail 
ABT for external parties as 
well.

Compelled restriction of 
the training activities owing 
to new health guidelines 
as a result of the Covid-19 
pandemic situation that 
prevailed.  

4.5 Human Resource Development Programmes 

Programme Achievements and Goals 
realized Future Goals Challenges

Training  of  Trainers 
(TOT)

In accordance with the annual 
training plan, it had drawn out 
arrangements for 2500 human 
days for the training of trainers 
during the year 2021. More-
over, the training program 
concerned was set to get 
underway via online modes in 
the face of the then prevailed 
pandemic outbreak, making 
it possible to complete 6198 
human days of training. The 
participation thereto was 4885 
persons.

In accordance with the 
annual training plan, it 
had designed out arrange-
ments for 2500 human 
days for the training of 
trainers. 

Being compelled to be 
subject to restrictions on 
the training activities owing 
to new health guidelines 
laid down as a result of 
the Covid - 19 pandemic 
situation.

Training  of the  ad-
ministrative staffs 

Action has been taken to pro-
vide training to 35 institutional 
officers.

Action will be taken 
to undertake training 
sessions in order 
to enable the entire 
staff to enhance their 
performance and 
productivity.
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4.6 Physical Progress of the Capital Projects

Overall Physical Progress

Description Physical Progress (%)

Work Items of Rehabilitation 100

Capital Projects (Acquirements) 90

Capacity Building (Training of Trainers) / (Staff Training)
90

 Procurements 95

94

 Capital Projects (Work Items of Rehabilitation)

Ob-
ject 
No. 

Province Center Item of Work

Phys-
ical 

Prog-
ress %  

Physical Prog-
ress in detail

2001

1 Western 
Province Katunayake

Covering the upper part of the 
two changing rooms of the 
Rangers by fixing up panels of 
mesh.

100%

Bills have been 
settled.

2

North  
Western 
Province

Wariyapola

Setting up a net cover in place of 
the front fence. 100%

Bills have been 
settled.

3
Setting up of mesh covering and 
fixing a door for the NVQ room. 100%

Bills have been 
settled.

4
Building a new toilet and fixing a 
wash basin therein. 100%

Bills have been 
settled.

5
Construction of the security 
fence at the back and right side 
of the kitchen anew.

100%
Bills have been 
settled.

6 Panduwasnuwara
Construction of the security 
fence at the back and right side 
of the centre.

100%
Bills have been 
settled.

7 Wennappuwa Renovation of the security fence 
surrounding the centre. 100%

Bills have been 
settled.

8 Kuliyapitiya Cementing the classroom area 
and construction of a bund. 100%

Bills have been 
settled.

9 Mawathagama
Repair of the doors and windows 
of the hostel of the young men 
and women.

100%
Bills have been 
settled.
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10
North  

Central 
Province

Kekirawa Repairs to the electrical system. 100% Bills have been 
settled.

11 Galenbidunuwewa Construction of a guardroom. 100%
Bills have been 
handed over to 
Finance Division.

12

Southern 
Province

Weeraketiya
Fixing up grills and door locks 
and refurbishing of the ceiling of 
women's hostel. 

100%

Bills have been 
settled.

13 Akmeemana

Construction of the lavatory 
system / renovation of the rain 
gutters and PVC piping in the 
main building.

100%

Bills have been 
settled.

14

Central 
Province

Naula Outbound 

Paving up Interlock bricks to the 
road from the main gate to the 
quarters of the officers.

100%
Bills have been 
settled.

15
Ground floor of the hostel 
building (Balance work) 100%

Construction work 
in progress. 

16
Construction of the security wall 
(adjacent to the canal) 270 ft. in 
length.

100%
Bills have been 
settled. 

17
Dambulla Hotel 
Training School 

Setting up of a shade to house 
the electrical generator. 100% Bills have been 

settled. 

18

Eastern 
Province

Kuchchaweli Construction of the main gate.
100%

19 Dehiattakandiya Refurbishing of the ceiling of the 
office and the computer lab.

100% Bills have been 
received. With 
defects.

20

Uva  
Province

Thanamalwila
Setting up of the kitchen sink 
system and laying of 02 feet 
wide concrete plates.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

21 Monaragala Construction of the security gate. 100% Bills have been 
settled.

22 Mahiyanganaya Setting up of an area with 05 
water taps.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

23

Sabarag-
amu  

Province

Kegalle

Renovation of the security fence 
around the center.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

24 Construction of the tube well. 100% Bills have been 
settled.

25 Embilipitiya Construction of the lavatory 
system.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

26
Nothern 
Province Mannar Repairs to the roof. 100% Bills have been 

settled.
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27

Headquarters

Setting up of a pedestal with 
flags.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

28

Renovation of the bathroom 
adjacent to the Chairman's 
office.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

29

Installation of aluminum doors in 
the stores building.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

30
Construction of the rear wall 
raising it by 07 feet.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

31
Southern   
Province

Akmeemana Construction of two lavatory 
systems at the center.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

32 Sabarag-
amu  

Province
Kegalle

Refurbishing of the ceiling of 
officers lounge.

100% Bills have been 
received. With 
defects.

33
Repair and renovation of the 
Provincial Office.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

34
Central 

Province Yatinuwara

Paving up the road leading to the 
Central Provincial Office, training 
center canteen and the main 
stores with concrete.

100% Bills have been 
settled.

35
Eastern 
Province Ampara

Installation of the electrical 
lighting system at the center.

100% Bills have been 
received. With 
defects.

100%
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Capital Projects (Acquirements)  

Object 
No.    Project / Programme

Physical 
Progress 

%
Physical Progress in detail

2104

1
Construction of the Alawwa Training 
Centre 100% Consists of five buildings. Everything is built up.

2
Construction of the Valachchena Training 
Centre 100% Consists of five buildings. Everything is built up.

3
Construction of the Gomarankadawala 
Training Centre 100% Consists of five buildings. Everything is built up.

4
Construction of the Trincomalee Training 
Centre 100% Consists of five buildings. Everything is built up.

5
Construction of the Suriyawewa Training 
Centre 100%

The foundation of the stores building has been 
laid and the floor concreted. The kitchen has 
been pillared and the roof made with concrete. 
The foundation of the auditorium has been laid 
and the floor concreted. The classroom building 
has been pillared, the concrete floor laid and 
the roof covered with sheets. The foundation of 
the hostel building has been laid and the floor 
concreted.

6 Construction of the Chilaw Training Centre 40%

The classrooms, the computer lab building and 
the administration building have been walled 
with posts. The floor of the kitchen and stores 
building has been concreted and the posts 
erected.

7 Construction of the Dambulla Training 
Centre 70%

Consists of five buildings. Its classrooms, 
computer lab building and administration 
building have been pillared and the roof fixed. 
The women's and men's changing building 
has been pillared and the walls built up. The 
concrete slab is to be laid. Only the pillars of 
the auditorium have been erected. The stores 
building and the kitchen have been pillared and 
walls and the roofs have been made. Electrical 
circuits have been set up and the windows and 
doors have also been fixed.

 8
Getting new water connection to the 
Weerawila National Youth Corps Training 
Center

100% This item of work has been completed.

9
Getting new water connection to the 
Lunugamwehera National Youth Corps 
Training Center

100% Remains in the last stage.

10
Making payments for disfiguring the main 
road when getting the new water supply 
connection.

11 Suriyawewa Balance Work & Toilet Block. 100% Remains in the last stage.

12
Construction of the front wall of the 
headquarters. 100% Construction work has been completed.
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13 Renovation of the record room. 100% Construction work has been completed.

14 Monaragala - Phase 04. 100% Construction work has been completed.

15 Naula Phase 02 - Hostel Building. 60% The walls have been built up to the roof.

16
Katunayake Lavatory Systems - Residual 
Works E2 100% Construction work has been completed.

17
Bandarawela Lavatory Systems - Residual 
Works E1 100% Construction work has been completed.

18
To improve the HR division and the securi-
ty guardroom. 100% Construction work has been completed.

19 Kataragama Balance Work 100% Construction work has been completed.

20 Nivithigala Balance Work 100% Construction work has been completed.

21 Dickwella Balance Work 100% Construction work has been completed.

22
For the payment of consultancy service 
fees. 100% Construction work has been completed.

tl;=j 90]

 
Procurements

Description of the Programme Estimated Cost

Progress in the 
 Implementation

Physical 
Progress

Financial 
Progress

Capital Expenditure 

01 Woden Items and Equipment 24.39 75% 10%
02 Property, Plants and Equipment 57.01 75% 38%
03 Buildings and Construction 205.07 92% 74%
04 Repairs to Property, Plants and  

Equipment
1.00 75% 0%

05 Repairs to and Buildings and Construction 30.80 98% 59%
06 Repairs to Transport related work 1.00 90% 62%
07 Software Development 3.00 50% 13%

322.27 95% 61%
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Capacity Development –Training Division 

Object 
No.  Project / Programme Target for the year 

2021
Total  

Progress %
Physical Progress in 

detail

19
4-

02
-0

7-
01

-2
20

1

Training of trainers (TOT) Training of trainers for 
the year is expected 
to take effect over 
a duration of 2500 
human days.

100

According to the annual 
training plan for the year 
2021, the training of trainers 
was planned as 2500 human 
days. Moreover, in view 
of the prevailed pandemic 
situation, the training 
programme was conducted 
online, where 6402 human 
days were to be consumed.

Staff Training  

100

Payments were made for 
the training programme on 
staff skill development and 
the training programme on 
procurement process held in 
the month of December 2021 
with the aim of keeping the 
knowledge of the staff of the 
Youth Corps Headquarters 
up-to-date.

 Staff scholarships 10 scholarships 
are expected to be 
awarded.

70

Under the updated training 
policy for the year 2021, 
around 10 scholarships for 
the staff were expected to be 
made available. Accordingly, 
it has been possible to 
provide scholarships for 
07 staff members up to 
an amount worth Rs. 
312,000.00 by the month 
December 2021.

Total 90
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4.7 Financial Progress of the Recurrent and Capital Programmes  

	 The overall financial progress of the recurrent expenditure and the capital expenditure 
during the year 2021 is as shown below.

Types of Provi-
sion  m%;sm-

dok j¾. 

Types of Provision  
Actual  

Expenditure 

Provisions utilized as 
% of final provisions 
that were exhaustedOpening

Provision
Closing

Provision

Recurrent 1000,000,000 815,000,000 643,753,300.00 79%

Capital 500,800,000 325,800,000 293,777,918.99 90%

Financial program

Capital 90%     

   

Recurrent 79%

Composition of the Recurrent & Capital Expenditure 
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4.7.1 Financial Progress of the Recurrent Development Programmes

Srl. 
No. Programme Projected (Units)

Allocation 
for the year 

2021
(Rs. m.)

Revised Esti-
mated Amount 

as at
31.08.2021 

(Rs. m.)

Annual 
Financial  

Prog-
ress as at 

31.12.2021
(Rs. m.)

1 Life Skill Training 
Course 10,000 Trainees 90.00 90.00 39.00

2 Referrals to vocational 
training 3,300 Trainees 105.00 42.60 3.13

3
Life skill training for 
external institutes / 
school prefects

61,000 Trainees 9.00 4.50 0.83

4
Vocational Education 
– Hotel Training 
School

400 Trainees - - -

5 Adventure Based 
Training 3,500 Trainees 18.50 6.60 1.11

6 Vocational training 
evaluation 500 Trainees 0.80 0.80 0.76

7 Development of 
language laboratories

20 Centres 
2000  Trainees 8.64 - -

8 Language training for 
school students

12 School Centres  
360 Trainees 2.59 - -

9 Entrepreneurship 
Development

16 Programmes  
320 Number of  
Entrepreneurs

8.25 - -

10

National level sports 
programme (Archery, 
Air Rifle Shooting and 
Volleyball)

20 + 20 + 30 3.80 1.50 0.93

11 Enrolment of students - 17.50 10.00 5.68
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Capital Projects (Acquirements) 

Ob-
ject 
No. Project / Programme

Provisions 
allocated in 

2021 (Rs. m.)

Expendi-
ture as at 

31.12.2021 
(Rs. m.)

Liabili-
ties 

Bills in 
hand 

Financial 
Progress  

% 
2104

1 Construction of the Alawwa Training Centre 14'77 14'77  100]

2
Construction of the Valachchena Training 
Centre 7'20 7'20  100]

3
Construction of the Gomarankadawala 
Training Centre 10'09  10'09 71]

4
Construction of the Trincomalee Training 
Centre 12'34  12'34 0]

5
Construction of the Suriyawewa Training 
Centre 14'07 14'08  100]

6 Construction of the Chilaw Training Centre 20'14 20'14  100]

7
Construction of the Dambulla Training 
Centre 20'00 12'28 7'72 61]

 8

Getting new water connection to the 
Weerawila National Youth Corps Training 
Center

0'75 0'74 100]

 9

Getting new water connection to the 
Lunugamwehera National Youth Corps 
Training Center

0'75 0'40 0'35 52]

 10

Making payments for disfiguring the main 
road when getting the new water supply 
connection.

 11
Suriyawewa Balance Work & Toilet Block.

4'00 0'67 3'33 20]

 12
Construction of the front wall of the 
headquarters. 1'53 1'52 100]

 13
Renovation of the record room.

1'90 - 1'90 0]

14 Monaragala - Phase 04. 7'39 5'56 1'84 75]

15
Naula Phase 02 - Hostel Building.

13'30 5'92 7'38 44]

16
Katunayake Lavatory Systems - Residual 
Works E2 1'14 1'14 100]

17
Bandarawela Lavatory Systems - Residual 
Works E1 5'99 5'99 100]

18

To improve the HR division and the security 
guardroom. 7'14 7'13 100]

19 Kataragama Balance Work 16'04 15'59 0'45 97]

20 Nivithigala Balance Work 7'93 7'92 100]

21 Dickwella Balance Work 3'40 3'40 100]

22
For the payment of consultancy service 
fees. 35'23 28'07

7'16
100]

Total 205.07 152.51 22.61 29.94 74%
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Capacity Development 

Object 
No. Project / Programme Target for the 

year 2021

Provisions 
allocated in 

2021 (Rs. m.) 

Expendi-
ture as at 

31.12.2021
(Rs. m.)

Total Progress 
%

19
4-

02
-0

7-
01

-2
20

1 

Training of Trainers 
(TOT)

Training of 
trainers for the 
year is expected 
to take effect over 
a duration of 2500 
human days.

2.0 1.99 100

Staff Training 0.5 0.50 100

Staff scholarships 10 scholarships 
are expected to 
be awarded.

0.5 0.31 62

Total  
3.00  2.80 90

4.8 Non-financial Assets 	

Assets 
Code Code Description

Balance as per 
Board of Survey 
Report on Items  
as at 31.12.2020

Balance as per 
Statement of 

Financial Position 
as at 31.12.2020 

Due for  
Onward  

Accounting 

Reporting as 
Percentage % 

9151 Buildings and Struc-
tures  516,495,391 516,495,391 - -

9152 Machinary and 
Equipment 53,243,718 53,243,718 - -

9160 Work in Progress 2,236,026,793 2,236,026,793 - -
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4.9  Overall Note on the Administration and Cadre 

	 Since the inception of the National Youth Corps, 10 Chairmen have been appointed by the Ministers 
in charge of the respective subject. In addition, the National Youth Corps has a permanent staff of 569 
personnel constituting its administrative and service divisions.

Approved Cadre Existing Cadre Vacant / Redundant
Senior 18 15 03

Tertiary 127 101 26
Secondary 722 628 94

Preliminary 83 77 06
Contract/Casual - -                 -

Total 950 821 129

	 As most of the above vacant positions in the National Youth Corps happens to be the posts of Instructors 
attached to the training centres, the National Youth Corps is confronted with a drawback in the regular 
continuation of its courses of training. In particular, the resultant major reason for the adverse impact on 
these vacant positions is that the employees of the National Youth Corps do not have access to the perks 
and privileges the employees of other state institutions receive, and as such, these employees tend to 
leave their incumbent jobs in the Youth Corps for greener pastures to take up better positions whenever 
recruitments are made to the government departments and other institutions with pensions and other 
incentives.

4.10  Achievements in 2021 

•	 Following the agreement signed by the NYC with the National Dangerous Drugs Control Board on 
14.08.2020, trainees numbering 18 with a history of drug addiction were given the life skill training 
programme conducted by it and, of them, trainee rehabilitants numbering 05 were awarded related full-
time scholarships for referral to vocational training courses according to the formal results they achieved 
in an examination to test their abilities and affinities.

•	 The soft skill and leadership training programme conducted for the trainees recruited to the Department 
of Multipurpose Development Task Force has been implemented under two stages and 33,084 trainees 
(Phase I – 29,643 & Phase II – 3441) have successfully completed the said training. 

•	 Successful completion of the soft skills and leadership training programme over a period of 14 days by 
the trainees numbering 10,825 under enrolment with the Vocational Training Authority of Sri Lanka. 

•	 548 school prefects were given the leadership training after conducting 09 School Prefects Training 
Programmes even amidst the Covid – 19 situation that prevailed. 

4.11  Future Goals 

•	 Forrmulation of a Corporate Plan for the National Youth Corps.

•	 Establishment of a youth counseling desk in every training center of the National Youth Corps. 

•	 Establishment of a modern Agro-technological and Ecological Agriculture Training Center at Meepilipana 
in Nuwara Eliya.

•	 Eastablishment of a specialized foreign language training center at Katunayake. 

•	 Establishment of smart classrooms.

•	 To identify young men and women with sporting potential and develop them into the national level. - 
Netball, Archery and Shooting.

•	 To conduct online courses for young men and women who find it difficult to take part in the preliminary 
course of training.
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5.	 Human Resource Development 
	 Various training programmes are under implementation to enhance the knowledge and skills of the 
academic and non-academic staff of the National Youth Corps. Under this exercise, a training policy has been 
set up for the staff members to take up training courses and, in keeping with that policy, they have been given the 
opportunity to undergo training courses related to the duties of their own posts in terms of the respective positions 
of them in the staff. In this regard, the relevant course fees ranging from Rs. 10,000.00 to Rs. 75,000.00 are borne 
by the National Youth Corps.
And also, the members of the Youth Corps staff are directed to training programmes conducted by the staff training 
institutions such as the Sri Lanka Institute of Development Administration with a view to developing their knowledge 
and keeping it refreshed and updated.
 Furthermore, Youth Corps staff members selected according to the available    opportunity such as scholarships will 
be directed to gain exposure to foreign training programmes, conferences, etc.
Moreover, awareness programmes and training workshops for the members of the Youth Corps staff are set in 
motion at the Youth Corps Headquarters and at the training centres with the participation of the resource persons 
of expertise in their respective fields, thereby the Youth Corps paying more attention on the development of human 
resources. 
These programmes are organized by the Human Resource Development Division and Training Division of the 
National Youth Corps.

5.1 Various Training Programmes conducted by the Human Resource 
 Development Division

Srl. 
No.

Name of the 
Program

Trained 
Cadre

Duration 
of the  

Program

Total Investment 
(Rs. 000)

Nature of the 
Program

Output / 
Knowledge 

gainedLocal Foreign Local Foreign

1

Staff Skill 
Development 
Training 
Programme

17 02 Days 187000.00 - Internal -
Knowledge in  
Human Resource 
Management

2

Training 
Programme 
on 
Procurement 
Procedure

18 03 Days 270000.00 - Internal -
Knowledge in 
Procurement 
Procedure  
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5.3  Other Staff Training Workshops 

Srl. 
No. Programme Name of the Participant  

Number 
Partici-
pated 

Venue

1 Certificate Course in 
Tobacco and Alcohol 
Discontinuation and 
Prevention Counseling 

R.P.K.S. Prasanna (Attanagalla)
R.A.D.K.R. Ranatunga (Bulathsinhala)
P.S. Jayawardene (Katunayake)
S.P.M.S. Jayanthi (Bulatsinghala)
R.A.U. Ranasingha (Divulapitiya)

5

The National Authority 
on Tobacco and 
Alcohol
(Several training 
sessions and the 
respective written 
examination were 
conducted online due 
to Covid – 19 situation 
that prevailed.)

National Symposium on 
Tobacco and Alcohol 
Prevention – 2021 
conducted by the 
National Authority on 
Tobacco and Alcohol 
(NATA)

5

The National Authority 
on Tobacco and 
Alcohol
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6. Life Skill Training Course
	

The Preliminary Training Course in Life Skills of the National Youth Corps is designed with the objective 
of developing the Sri Lankan youth into a well-groomed community of people of discipline, leadership 
and personality equipped with knowledge, skills and attitudes. 

Those who can gain entry into this course of training shall be - 
•	 Young Sri Lankan men and women between the ages of 18 – 28 years who have left the school;
•	 Young men and women who are waiting for the results after completing the GCE Ordinary Level and 

Advanced Level Examinations;
•	 Young men and women who have qualified for university admission; 
•	 Trainees of the vocational education institutes; 
•	 Students entering the vocational stream of subjects within the school system;
•	 The batches of male and female youngsters referred to training on various occasions by the public 

and private sectors.
The course content, other than that of the preliminary life skills course of training in particular, will be 
adjusted appropriately to suit the needs of the respective young people and the institutions concerned in 
order to get the required training underway.
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	 Benefits derived by the Trainees
•	 Entitlement to an advanced certificate concerning English Language and Information Technology. 
•	 Uniforms.
•	 A life insurance cover of Rs. 500,000.00 covering the entire 24 hours of the day during the period of 

training.
•	 Referral to studies to undergo a vocational training course after the preliminary training course and 

provision of a course fee up to Rs. 100,000 for that purpose.
This course has been designed in such a manner that the young men and women would be able to acquire 
the necessary knowledge through various activities in order that they can pursue theoretical and practical 
training without being confined only to a classroom.
This course is conducted free of charge by the qualified instructors on the subject at 55 National Youth 
Corps Training Centers scattered throughout the island. It is expected that the trainee through this course 
would develop life skills as to how he /she should submit a Curriculum Vitae to gain access into a job, face 
an interview, convince the interview panel about himself /herself and perform an efficient and effective 
service by following the codes of conduct concerning the respective duties of the job in conjunction with 
the corporate culture after integration into employment.

	 The content of the syllabus of the Course in Life skills is as follows.
A.	 Career guidance
1.	 The conceptual analysis linked to career guidance and counseling.
2.	 The self-awareness and the goal setting that are necessary to develop a life philosophy.
3.	 The access to the labour market.
4.	 To identify the world of work and develop necessary attitudes to get into it.
5.	 Life skills for the professional career.
6.	 Preparing and tendering an application for employment.
7.	 Facing an interview.
8.	 The entrepreneurial skill development and career migration.
9.	 Community projects and voluntary programmes.
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B.	 Leadership and Personality Development

1.	 Personal and social courtesy;
2.	 Personal hygiene and grooming;
3.	 Personal responsibility and obligations;
4.	 Adolescent counseling objectives and its importance;
5.	 Identifying the needs in adolescence;
6.	 Sexual issues in adolescence and sexually transmitted diseases;
7.	 Psychosexual problems and the new adolescent;
8.	 Counseling in adolescence and spiritual intelligence management;
9.	 Autonomy / Personality;
10.	 Development of leadership skills;
11.	 Development of interpersonal relationships;
12.	 Communication skills;
13.	 Team building;
14.	 Self-motivation;
15.	 Self-cognizance;
16.	 Decision making and conflict management;
17.	 Anxiety and emotions;
18.	 Individual view of life.
In addition to the main subject of Life Skills, the course consists of disciplines such as Information 
Technology, English Language, Tamil Language, Aesthetics, Basic Hand Tools Training, Physical Fitness 
Training and Outbound Adventure Based Training.
30 trainees who successfully complete the initial training course from each training centre will be selected 
and given them a maximum sum of Rs. 100,000 each with full scholarships and referral for vocational 
training courses. Other trainees are referred to free vocational training courses of their choice and provided 
with the basic foundation needed for their future fields of professional careers.  
The trainees at the end of the course will be entitled to receive a total of three certificates, namely, 
the Certificate of Life Skills and two other advanced certificates in English Language and Information 
Technology approved by the University Grants Commission. 

Subjects related to the Courses of Training and their duration

Subject
Year 2021

Batch I (06 Months) Batch II  (03 Months)

Information Technology  195 75

English Language  195 65

Aesthetics 50 50

Tamil Language 50 50

Basic Hand Tools Training  30 30

Outbound Training (ABT) 16 32

Additional  06 06

Life Skill Development 200 200

Total Period 742 508 
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Srl. No. Province NYC Training Center
Recruited Training completed

M F Total M F Total
1

Western
Katunayake 26 22 48 17 15 32

2 Divulapitiya 25 30 55 9 13 22
3 Bulathsinhala 27 66 93 19 44 63
4

Central

Gampola 32 69 101 9 29 38
5 Naula 21 44 65 13 23 36
6 Nuwara Eliya 5 12 17 1 10 11
7 Hanguranketha 5 9 14 0 0 0
8 Walapane 7 36 43 2 24 26
9 Senkadagala 15 18 33 8 13 21

10 Yatinuwara 14 41 55 8 31 39
11

Central

Galle 17 43 60 7 29 36
12 Neluwa 5 23 28 2 16 18
13 Akuressa 17 40 57 12 20 32
14 Weeraketiya 4 19 23 2 11 13
15 Suriyawewa 8 22 30 2 13 15
16 Akmeemana 9 21 30 6 16 22
17 Dikwella 9 13 22 2 7 9
18 Lunugamvehera 19 30 49 6 12 18
19 Weerawila 11 26 37 8 19 27
20

North Central

Kekirawa 18 33 51 3 28 31
21 Kalawewa 26 24 50 21 18 39
22 Anuradhapura 20 25 45 5 20 25
23 Medirigiriya 27 35 62 14 30 44
24 Galenbidunuwewa 14 32 46 4 22 26
25

Uva

Bandarawela 12 21 33 0 8 8
26 Mahiyanganaya 8 47 55 3 25 28
27 Thanamalwila 7 9 16 3 4 7
28 Monaragala 18 40 58 15 38 53
29 Wellawaya 5 28 33 2 7 9
30 Siyambalanduwa 11 40 51 6 22 28
31

North Western

Kuliyapitiya 7 15 22 4 10 14
32 Wariyapola 41 53 94 22 34 56
33 Mawathagama 17 35 52 10 29 39
34 Panduwasnuwara 44 21 65 22 13 35
35 Dodangaslanda 7 30 37 7 23 30
36 Nattandiya 15 12 27 7 7 14
37 Wennappuwa 15 16 31 14 15 29
38 Alawwa 12 23 35 5 12 17
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39

Sabaragamuwa

Nivithigala 40 41 81 7 21 28
40 Galigamuwa 17 28 45 7 5 12
41 Embilipitiya 11 34 45 8 20 28
42 Kegalle 30 24 54 21 14 35
43 Balangoda 32 18 50 29 8 37
44 Dehiovita 51 59 110 25 50 75
45

Eastern

Ampara 24 56 80 2 25 27
46 Seruwawila 11 19 30 8 12 20
47 Gomarankadawala 1 11 12 0 6 6
48 Kuchchaweli 11 24 35 0 9 9
49 Trincomalee 19 22 41 13 18 31
50 Dehiattakandiya 41 44 85 5 10 15
51 Valachchena 69 193 262 53 106 159
52

Northern
Mullaitivu 1 3 4 0 0 0

53 Mannar 12 24 36 7 9 16
54 Vauniya 12 18 30 4 3 7

Total 982 1741 2723 489 1026 1515

Recruitment of Trainees – Second Batch (From July to December) 

Srl. No. Province NYC Training Center
Recruited Training completed

M F Total M F Total

1
Western

Katunayake 75 40 115 37 31 68
2 Divulapitiya 90 37 127 78 32 110
3 Bulathsinhala 93 79 172 92 78 170
4

Central

Gampola 67 58 125 10 14 24
5 Naula 70 67 137 13 38 51
6 Nuwara Eliya 27 46 73 8 15 23
7 Walapane 66 33 99 5 3 8
8 Senkadagala 48 44 92 34 28 62
9 Yatinuwara 68 31 99 29 21 50

10

Southern

Galle 47 17 64 32 12 44
11 Neluwa 72 58 130 61 50 111
12 Akuressa 71 67 138 67 67 134
13 Weeraketiya 40 25 65 0 15 15
14 Suriyawewa 47 54 101 18 23 41
15 Akmeemana 45 22 67 19 15 34
16 Dikwella 67 33 100 32 20 52
17 Lunugamvehera 31 14 45 7 1 8
18 Weerawila 31 33 64 21 27 48
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North Central

Kekirawa 83 57 140 39 27 66
20 Kalawewa 60 36 96 19 24 43
21 Anuradhapura 30 17 47 19 0 19
22 Medirigiriya 46 41 87 6 13 19
23 Galenbidunuwewa 68 53 121 6 14 20
24

Uva

Bandarawela 82 68 150 24 36 60
25 Mahiyanganaya 51 43 94 39 19 58
26 Thanamalwila 21 34 55 15 26 41
27 Monaragala 52 73 125 26 43 69
28 Wellawaya 50 56 106 4 8 12
29 Siyambalanduwa 25 19 44 25 17 42
30

North Western

Kuliyapitiya 32 36 68 6 15 21
31 Wariyapola 104 122 226 42 59 101
32 Mawathagama 88 71 159 23 19 42
33 Panduwasnuwara 76 44 120 27 22 49
34 Dodangaslanda 97 40 137 40 27 67
35 Nattandiya 58 22 80 8 9 17
36 Wennappuwa 47 44 91 19 29 48
37 Alawwa 50 58 108 5 20 25
38

Sabaragamuwa

Nivithigala 71 65 136 34 38 72
39 Galigamuwa 71 54 125 30 28 58
40 Embilipitiya 66 90 156 26 41 67
41 Kegalle 107 77 184 66 51 117
42 Balangoda 55 44 99 26 34 60
43 Dehiovita 77 72 149 40 50 90
44

Eastern

Ampara 49 57 106 9 13 22
45 Seruwawila 23 24 47 2 3 5
46 Gomarankadawala 20 8 28 4 2 6
47 Kuchchaweli 27 12 39 5 9 14
48 Trincomalee 43 23 66 3 4 7
49 Dehiattakandiya 39 56 95 6 9 15
50

Northern
Mullaitivu 15 12 27 8 4 12

51 Mannar 55 42 97 7 10 17
52 Vauniya 60 42 102 8 9 17

Total 2953 2370 5323 1229 1222 2451

Life Skill and Leadership Training Programmes carried out for external institutions

Srl. No. Programme Duration Number Trained

1
14 day programme 
undertaken for the trainees 
of the Vocational Training 
Authority (VTA)

2021.01.08 - 2021.02.28 10,825
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7. Passing out of the trainees at the conclusion of their training

At the conclusion of the training course conducted under the respective stages in the National Youth Corps 
Training Centers, the passing out event of the trainees is held in a ceremonial note after giving away 
the respective certificates to them. On this occasion, a passing out parade with the National Youth 
Corps Band in attendance will be held followed by a certificate awarding ceremony at the provincial 
level while there will also be a presentation of trophies for the best and the most outstanding young 
male trainee and female trainee.

In the face of the corona pandemic situation in the year 2021, arrangements were made to issue respective 
certificates to the trainees at the training center level itself in accordance with the health guidelines 
laid down by the government with effect from 20 to 26 December 2021 for both the groups.
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Passing out Ceremonies held at the Center-level 

Srl. No.  Province Training Centers 
Participation

Male Female Total

1
Western

Katunayake 54 46 100
2 Divulapitiya 87 45 132
3 Bulathsinhala 111 122 233
4

Central

Gampola 19 43 62
5 Naula 26 61 87
6 Nuwara Eliya 9 25 34
7 Hanguranketha 0 0 0
8 Walapane 7 27 34
9 Senkadagala 42 41 83

10 Yatinuwara 37 52 89
11

Southern

Galle 39 41 80
12 Neluwa 63 66 129
13 Akuressa 79 87 166
14 Weeraketiya 2 26 28
15 Suriyawewa 20 36 56
16 Akmeemana 25 31 56
17 Dikwella 34 27 61
18 Lunugamvehera 13 13 26
19 Weerawila 29 46 75
20

North Central

Kekirawa 42 55 97
21 Kalawewa 40 42 82
22 Anuradhapura 24 20 44
23 Medirigiriya 20 43 63
24 Galenbidunuwewa 10 36 46
25

Uva

Bandarawela 24 44 68
26 Mahiyanganaya 42 44 86
27 Thanamalwila 18 30 48
28 Monaragala 41 81 122
29 Wellawaya 6 15 21
30 Siyambalanduwa 31 39 70
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31

North Western

Kuliyapitiya 10 25 35
32 Wariyapola 64 93 157
33 Mawathagama 33 48 81
34 Panduwasnuwara 49 35 84
35 Dodangaslanda 47 50 97
36 Nattandiya 15 16 31
37 Wennappuwa 33 44 77
38 Alawwa 10 32 42
39

Sabaragamuwa

Nivithigala 41 59 100
40 Galigamuwa 37 33 70
41 Embilipitiya 34 61 95
42 Kegalle 87 65 152
43 Balangoda 55 42 97
44 Dehiovita 65 100 165
45

Eastern

Ampara 11 38 49
46 Seruwawila 10 15 25
47 Gomarankadawala 4 8 12
48 Kuchchaweli 5 18 23
49 Trincomalee 16 22 38
50 Dehiattakandiya 11 19 30
51 Valachchena 53 106 159
52

Northern
Mullaitivu 8 4 12

53 Mannar 14 19 33
54 Vauniya 12 12 24

1718 2248 3966
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8. Referral to the Vocational Training
The trainees who successfully complete the six-month training will be directed to the vocational training courses 
under the following professional fields handled by the recognized vocational education institutes of the public and 
private sector selected according to their professional interest and the capabilities they have at present. The hitherto 
existed method of paying a sum amounting to Rs. 10,000 as course fees paid to the trainees by the National Youth 
Corps saw a revision to pay out a maximum sum of Rs. 100,000 per trainee after having selected 30 persons 
from each of the training center for the purpose of referring them to follow vocational training courses on full-time 
scholarships with effect from the Phase I in 2021. The rest of the male and female trainees are directed to the 
charge free vocational training courses of their choice, laying the necessary basic foundation for them to find the 
way forward to their future professional field.
Apart from this, the National Youth Corps continues to monitor the progress of the trainees whilst their vocational 
training courses are in motion and carries on with the task of guiding them through to suitable employment 
opportunities. 

 
 

01 Agricultural Plantations and Animal 
Husbandry 08 Information Communication and 

Multimedia Technology
02 Arts and Media and Graphic 09 Nautical and Marine Kinetics

03 Vehicle Repair and Maintenance and 
Automobile Mechanics 10 Languages

04 Electrical, Electronics and Telecommunication 11 Nursing and Care Service
05 Gems and Jewellery 12 Metals and Light Engineering
06 Hotel and Tourism 13 Office Management
07 Human Resource Management 14 Refrigeration and Air Conditioning
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	 9. Special Training Courses
	 In addition to the Life Skill Training Course conducted by the National Youth Corps, the following training programmes 

are also conducted by it and the Youth Corps trainees along with the outsiders are invited to participate in these 
training programmes.

•	 Hotel Training Course
•	 Higher Certificate Course in Information Technology and English Language
•	 Outbound Adventure Based Training Course

9.1 Hotel Training Course
	 Other Objectives :  

I. To open up the opportunities of providing vocational training qualifications  immediately after the completion of the 
preliminary course for the professional success of the trainees of young men and women undergoing basic training in 
the National Youth Corps. 

II. To contribute a community of youth with practical skills to the labour market through the National Youth Corps.
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Operation and Evaluation Methodology: Operations are carried out by a staff headed by an Officer in Charge of the 
respective Centre under the supervision of the Director of the Central Province with the full involvement of the National 
Youth Corps Headquarters. 
The National Youth Corps is the foremost government institution in the country that provides soft skills training. Young 
people between the ages of 18-28 from all over Sri Lanka continue to take part in this soft skills training every year. It 
has become an exclusive necessity to integrate into the vocational career field, a set of young people with skills who 
have directly honed the inner soft skills they could not practically accomplish in their school curriculum at the time when 
they get access into society as a rookie male or female youngster brimming with a full array of talents following the 
completion of their school education. In this exercise, the scores of youth who get into the fold of the National Youth 
Corps Centres and the young people who opt for joining direct to the hotel industry should be afforded an opportunity 
to achieve success in their careers. Towards that end, the Dambulla National Youth Corps Centre which used to be an 
ordinary training centre of the National Youth Corps was developed into delivering the task of providing hotel training, 
and it caters to hotel training for many young men and women every year.  
Dambulla Hotel Training School of the National Youth Corps annually enrolls 02 batches of trainees for training, and 
the following five (05) courses in the hotel industry are operative under this exercise. 

		  	 01.	 Pastry & Bakery - NVQ Level IV 
			   02.	 International Cookery - NVQ Level IV
			   03.	 Food & Beverages - NVQ Level IV
			   04.	 House Keeping - NVQ Level III)
	 	 	 05.	 Front Office - NVQ Level III

These training courses are at the level of National Vocational Qualification (NVQ) 111 and IV and this institute of hotel 
training has the capacity to provide training to 200 trainees at a time.
Equipped with all the modern facilities required for a hotel training school, a qualified and proficient board of instructors 
in the hotel industry caters to the training needs of its trainees.
   

These recruitments are made through proper advertising channels and any Sri Lankan male or female youngster who 
has completed the preliminary training course of the National Youth Corps and is interested in the hotel industry gets 
the opportunity to pursue the courses at La Hotelier, the Hotel Training School situated in Inamaluwa, Dambulla. No 
fees are charged for these courses and accommodation facilities are also provided during the training period. Upon 
completion of such training, all young trainee men and women with NVQ Level III/IV National Vocational Qualification 
will have the opportunity to gain access to recognized jobs in the hotel industry linked to tourism.  

Course Description 

	 Srl. 
No. Course Vocational Qualification 

Level Duration

1 Front Office Receptionist IV 06 Months
2 House Keeping III 03 Months
3 Food and Beverages IV 6 Months
4 Pastry and Bakery IV 6 Months
5 International Cookery IV 6 Months
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Schedule of Course Commencement and Completion  

Year Date of Course  
Commencement

Date of Course  
Completion

2014 I 2014.09.10 2015.03.30
2015 I 2015.04.06 2015.10.30
2016 I 2016.01.04 2016.06.30
2016 II 2016.07.04 2017.01.12
2017 I 2017.01.17 2017.06.30
2017 II 2017.07.12 2018.01.12
2018 I 2018.06.04 2018.12.04
2019 I 2019.02.15 2019.08.15
2019 II 2019.07.15 2020.01.15
2020 I 2020.01.16 2021.01.22
2021 I 2021.01.27 2021.12.31

Due to Easter Attack and Corona Pandemic, the Hotel Training Courses during the years 2020 and 2021 were limited 
only to one phase thereof. 

Registered Trainees 

Year Registered Trainees Pass Outs of the  
Courses Job Placements

2014 I 185 149 94
2015 I 210 169 137
2016 I 71 57 49
2016 II 258 233 208
2017 I 185 137 106
2017 II 182 145 145
2018 I 102 82 82
2019 I 102 87 86
2019 II 97 81 81
2020 I 104 55 45
2021 I 86 38 37

Summary of Courses in Hotel Training

Year Front Office 
Receptionist

House 
Keeping

Food and 
Beverages

Pastry and 
Bakery

International 
Cookery

2014 - I

Registered - 35 48 46 56
Deserted - 11 11 6 8
Completed - 24 37 40 48
In-job Training - 9 23 31 31

2015 - I

Registered - 34 52 51 73
Deserted - 8 12 7 14
Completed - 26 40 44 59
In-job Training - 26 30 41 40
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2016 I

Registered - 11 13 18 29
Deserted - 2 2 5 5
Completed - 9 11 13 24
In-job Training - 7 11 13 18

2016 II

Registered 30 52 58 57 61
Deserted 6 9 4 1 5
Completed 24 43 54 56 56
In-job Training 17 38 50 50 53

2017 I

Registered 15 32 51 43 44
Deserted 5 6 16 9 12
Completed 10 26 35 34 32
In-job Training 10 23 20 23 30

2017 II

Registered 11 35 43 42 51
Deserted 2 11 5 5 14
Completed 9 24 38 37 37
In-job Training 9 24 38 37 37

2018 I

Registered 8 19 16 25 34
Deserted 0 2 5 1 4
Completed 6 15 11 21 29
In-job Training 6 15 11 21 29

2019 I

Registered 15 15 17 28 28
Deserted 3 6 2 3 3
Completed 12 9 15 25 25
In-job Training 12 9 15 25 25

2019 II

Registered 3 25 14 26 29
Deserted 0 7 4 3 5
Completed 3 18 10 23 24
In-job Training 3 18 10 23 24

2020 I

Registered 7 23 25 26 23
Deserted 2 17 12 9 9
Completed 5 6 13 17 14

In-job Training 4 6 11 13 11

2021 I

Registered 7 11 20 25 23
Deserted 4 5 15 13 11
Completed 3 6 5 12 12

In-job Training 3 6 5 12 11
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9.2 Course in Information Technology and Higher Certificate Course in English 
Language 

	 Young cadets completing life skill training and the young men and women who are interested in English and 
IT can enroll in the Advanced Certificate Course in IT and English Language. This course, which is of a three-month 
duration, is conducted jointly with the Sri Lanka International Buddhist Academy approved by the University Grants 
Commission.

At the conclusion of the course, two separate certificates are given for the English Language subject and the IT subject, 
and the course is designed in a manner that those who successfully complete the course can proceed to the diploma 
course, the advanced diploma course as well as the degree course for those who have passed 03 Advanced Level 
subjects.

First Batch of 2021 

Srl. No. Province National Youth Corps 
Training Centres

No. of Cadets who 
followed the Course

No. of Cadets who received 
Certificates

English  
Language 

Information 
Technology

1

Western

Katunayake 40 30 30
2 Attanagalla 0 0 0
3 Divulapitiya 50 23 23
4 Bulathsinhala 83 38 33
5 Yakkala 0 0 0
6

Central

Gampola 68 35 35
7 Naula 65 35 35
8 Nuwara Eliya 19 9 13
9 Walapane 35 15 19

10 Kandy 29 17 20
11 Yatinuwara 54 35 35
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12

Southern

Galle 45 29 30
13 Neluwa 26 15 15
14 Akuressa 47 14 17
15 Weeraketiya 23 16 15
16 Suriyawewa 26 14 14
17 Akmeemana 28 21 23
18 Dikwella 13 7 8
19 Lunugamvehera 44 27 28
20 Weerawila 37 20 19
21

North 
 Western

Kuliyapitiya 17 13 12
22 Wariyapola 81 44 47
23 Mawathagama 38 17 18
24 Panduwasnuwara 53 10 16
25 Alawwa 31 15 16
26 Wennappuwa 20 19 18
27 Dodangaslanda 35 19 26
28 Nattandiya 27 11 14
29

North Central

Kekirawa 55 28 25
30 Bulnewa 41 28 29
31 Anuradhapura 46 19 19
32 Galenbidunuwewa 50 24 25
33 Medirigiriya 63 34 35
34

Uva

Bandarawela 26 9 10
35 Mahiyanganaya 49 28 19
36 Thanamalwila 13 06 06
37 Wellawaya 26 8 8
38 Siyambalanduwa 41 16 19
39 Monaragala 33 28 28
40

Sa
ba

ra
ga

mu
wa

Nivithigala 60 29 25
41 Galigamuwa 34 10 10
42 Embilipitiya 42 23 22
43 Balangoda 53 35 33
44 Kegalle 45 23 34
45 Dehiovita 108 55 59
46

   Eastern

Ampara 57 18 22
47 Seruwawila 20 17 18
48 Gomarankadawala 8 6 6
49 Kuchchaweli 24 8 9
50 Trincomalee 39 31 31
51 Valachchena 210 81 85
52 Dehiattakandiya 96 14 15
53

Northern
Mullaitivu 0 0 0

54 Vauniya 22 3 4
55 Mannar 34 15 15

Total 2329 1144 1190



9.3 Adventure Based Training
	 For trainees, the Adventure Based Training is an integral part of the Life Skill Training Course. It is also a separate 

course for the employees of the government and private sector institutions. The course is conducted as a four-day 
course for the young cadets and as a one-day, two-day or three-day course for the employees of the government and 
private sector institutions according to their own choice. The institutionalized regular course hereof is in operation 
centring the Naula Adventure Based Training (ABT) Centre.

Qualities set out below are expected to be developed:-

•	 Development of self-confidence;

•	 Personal stress and emotion management;

•	 Holding leadership, responsibility and accountability;

•	 Making observations and drawing conclusions;

•	 Identification of individuals;

•	 Creative thinking;

•	 Identifying problems and finding solutions;

•	 Facing challenges;

•	 Exposure to adventurous experience;

•	 Enjoyment.
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Adventure Based Training for the Batch of 2021 

Srl. No Date Center 
Trainees

Full Total
Male Female Total

1 2021.12.15 - 2021.12.17 Neluwa 8 2 10 89
2 Galle 9 1 10
3 Akmeemana 5 5 10
4 Akuressa 4 6 10
5 Dickwella 3 7 10
6 Suriyawewa 6 4 10
7 Weeraketiya 4 6 10
8 Weerawila 7 3 10
9 Lunugamwehera 0 9 9

10 2021.12.20 - 2021.12.22 Monaragala 7 3 10 59
11 Siyambalanduwa 8 2 10
12 Mahiyanganaya 8 2 10
13 Bandarawela 8 1 9
14 Wellawaya 7 3 10
15 Thanamalwila 4 6 10
16 Katunayake 6 3 9 28
17 Divulapitiya 5 5 10
18 Bulathsinhala 5 4 9
19 2021.12.27 - 2021.12.29 Kekirawa 6 4 10 49
20 Kalawewa 5 5 10
21 Galenbindunuwewa 5 5 10
22 Anuradhapura 5 4 9
23 Medirigiriya 7 3 10
24 2021.11.29 - 2021.12.01 Senkadagala 3 6 9 96
25 Yatinuwara 7 3 10
26 Naula 3 7 10
27 Gampola 8 1 9
28 Embilipitiya 9  9
29 Balangoda 5 4 9
30 Nivithigala 7 3 10
31 Galigamuwa 6 4 10
32 Dehiovita 8 2 10
33 Kegalle 4 6 10
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34 2021.12.03 - 2021.12.05 Kuliyapitiya 6 4 10 99
35 Dodangaslanda 8 2 10
36 Nattandiya 6 4 10
37 Alawwa 9 1 10
38 Wariyapola 5 5 10
39 Wennappuwa 5 5 10
40 Panduwasnuwara 4 5 9
41 Mawathagama 6 4 10
42 Walapane 9 1 10
43 Nuwara Eliya 9 1 10
44 2021.12.07 - 2021.12.09 Mannar 5 5 10 90
45 Mullaitive 4 6 10
46 Vauniya 4 6 10
47 Kuchchaveli  2 2 4
48 Gomarankadawala 3 3 6
49 Trincomalee 4 6 10
50 Seruwila 7 3 10
51 Dehiattakandiya 8 2 10
52 Ampara 9 1 10
53 Valachchena 0 10 10

Total Number 510

Due to the Covid – 19 pandemic situation that prevailed, only 10 male and female trainees who showed exceptional 
performance from one center belonging to the Batch II of 2021 were referred for outbound ABT training.

Outbound training for External Parties 

Srl. 
No. Institution Event Venue Date No. of 

Participants

1
Officers from the 
District Sports Office 
of Matale 

Nauala Outbound 
ABT Training Centre 2021.11 17 - 2021.11.19 55
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	 10. Youth Development Programmes
	 With the youth development in mind, many a programme under development programmes such as Training of School 
Prefects, Multipurpose Development Task Force Programme, Drug Prevention Programme, Adolescent Health and Sexually 
Transmitted Disease Programme, Non-communicable Disease Programme, Essay Competition, Debate Contest, Quiz Contest 
(Centers), Disaster Management programme, Sports Meet (provincial), Environment Project and Community Development, etc. 
have been implemented successfully.

10.1 Training of School Prefects

	 Following the requests made by the principals to provide training related to the development of leadership qualities 
and abilities for the benefit of the student leaders of their schools, the Youth Corps conducts school prefects training 
workshops and such training sessions are conducted with the resourceful contribution of the officers of the National 
Youth Corps Headquarters as well as the instructors of the respective training centres.

These training workshops provide the school perfects with the knowledge, lectures and practical workouts necessary to 
improve their leadership qualities to successfully perform their duties as student leaders.

Training Workshops for School Prefects 

Srl. No. School Date on which the 
event took place Event Venue No. of Stu-

dents 

1 Madam Adi Nishba MV 2021.04.06

North Western 
Province 

57

2

Ch/ Walahapitiya MV

2021.04.08

34
Ch/ Muthupanthiya Primary College 16
Ch/ Siri Sujatha Model School 35
Ch/ Dematapitiya Prmary School  26

3 Maha/ Vidyartha College 2021.04.24 Naula Out-
bound 78

4 Kuli/ Kithalawa Pugalla MV  2021.03.17 Kuliyapitiya 28
5 Bolawatta Sithumina Vidyalaya 2021.12.14 Senkadagala 35
6 Ga/ Janadhipathi Balika Vidyalaya 2021.12.20 Akmeemana 100
7 Koslanda National School 2021.12.21 Bandarawela 54

8 NM Perera MMV 2021.12.22 Dehiovita 60

9 Ra/ Kahatapitiya Hapugahakumbura 
Vidyalaya  2021.12.27 Balangoda 25

Total Number 548
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10.2 Multipurpose Development Task Force Programme

The Multipurpose Development Task Force was established as a lasting and unique strategy to overcome 
poverty eradication which is also the main goal of the Sustainable Development Goals in keeping with the 
Policy Statement of “Vistas of Prosperity”.
With the objective of bringing forth a skilled workforce of youth into the country's entire workforce of 
employment, 14 days of soft skills and leadership training will be provided under the overall supervision of 
the National Youth Corps for one hundred thousand young men and women who are recruited under the 
Recruitment Programme of Multipurpose Crafts persons implemented by the Department of Multipurpose 
Development Task Force.

Srl. 
No.  Programme Duration

Number Trained

2020 2021

1

The 14 day training program 
conducted for the Multipurpose 
Assistants recruited for Govern-
ment Institutions such as Schools, 
Hospitals and Divisional Secretari-
ats etc. (Phase 01)     

2020.11.16 – 2021.04.10

29,643

2

14 Day Training Program conduct-
ed for Multipurpose Assistants 
recruited for the post of Elephant 
Fence Conservation Maintenance 
Assistant.(Phase 02)     

2021.11.22 – 2021.12.17 

3,441

Total Number 33,084
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10.3 Narcotic Drug Prevention Programme (National Dangerous Drugs 
Control Board - ADIC)

The drug prevention programme conducted by the National Youth Corps at the center level for all intended groups with 
the objective of creating a generation of youth free from alcohol and drugs, continued to go ahead in collaboration with 
the National Board of Dangerous Drugs Control (ADIC – Alcohol & Drug Information Center) or the Drug Prevention 
Bureau of the Sri Lanka Police.

Srl. No. Province National Youth Corps Training 
Centers

Date on which the event 
took place Participation

1
Western 

Katunayake 2021'02'18 80
2 Divulapitiya 2021'02'16 105
3

Central

Gampola 2021'02'12 104
4 Naula 2021'02'12 119
5 Walapane 2021'02'12 62
6 Senkadagala 2021'12'02 49
7 Yatinuwara 2021'02'19 50
8

Southern

Neluwa 2021'02'12  101
9 Akuressa 2021'02'12 121

10 Weeraketiya 2021'02'09 45
11 Suriyawewa 2021'02'12 91
12 Akmeemana 2021'02'18 47
13 Lunugamvehera 2021'02'16 32
14

North Central

Kekirawa 2021'02'19 104
15 Kalawewa 2021'02'12 60
16 Medirigiriya 2021'02'09 77
17 Galenbindunuwewa 2021'02'12 112
18

Uva

Bandarawela 2021'02'12 138
19 Mahiyanganaya 2021'02'16 64
20 Thanamalwila 2021'03'03 21
21 Monaragala 2021'02'09 69
22 Wellawaya 2021'02'18 76
23 Siyambalanduwa 2021'02'12 41
24

North Western

Kuliyapitiya 2021'02'12 58
25 Wariyapola 2021'02'16 206
26 Mawathagama 2021'03'05 139
27 Panduwasnuwara 2021'02'16 102
28 Dodamgaslanda 2021'02'12 107
29 Nattandiya 2021'02'16 61
30 Wennappuwa             2021'02'25 86
31

Sabara-gamuwa
Embilipitiya 2021'02'09  146

32 Kegalle 2021'02'02 117
33 Dehiovita 2021'04'09 138
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34

Eastern

Ampara 2021'02'12 86
35 Seruwawila 2021'02'12 42
36 Trincomalee 2021'02'19 54
37 Dehiattakandiya 2021'02'12 81
38 Valachchena 2021'03'22 234
39 Northern Vauniya 2021'02'22  95

Full Total 39 3520

10.4  Programme on Adolescence Health and Sexually Transmitted 
Diseases 

This programme with the objective of educating the youth about health and sexually transmitted diseases is implemented 
by the National Youth Corps for all cadets undergoing training at the Youth Corps Centers.

The programme is conducted by the Regional/Provincial Health Bureaus under the guidance of a personality 
development instructor or a career guidance officer trained in sexually transmitted diseases.

Srl. No. Province
National Youth 
Corps Training 

Centers

Date on which the 
event took place Participation

1
Western

Katunayake 2021'01'15 12
2 Divulapitiya 2019'02'28 109
3

Central

Naula 2021'02'18 36
4 Nuwara Eliya 2021'04'21 42
5 Walapane 2021'03'01 24
6 Senkadagala 2021'02'18 19
7 Yatinuwara 2021'02'18 22
8

Southern

Galle 2021'02'18 27
9 Neluwa 2021'02'18 17

10 Akuressa 2021'02'18 30
11 Weeraketiya 2021'02'18 19
12 Suriyawewa 2021'03'05 20
13 Akmeemana 2021'04'23 56
14 Lunugamvehera 2021'02'15 31
15 Weerawila 2021'02'09 22
16

North Central

Kalawewa 2021'02'18  41
17 Anuradhapura 2021'03'05 35
18 Medirigiriya 2021'03'02 50
19 Galenbindunuwewa 2021'02'18 35
20

Uva

Thanamalwila   2021'02'18 7 
21 Monaragala 2021'02'19 29
22 Wellawaya 22'02'2021 20
23 Siyambalanduwa 2021'02'18 25
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24

North Western

Kuliyapitiya 2021'02'18 10
25 Wariyapola 2021'03'02 51
26 Mawathagama 2021'02'16 28
27 Panduwasnuwara 2021'02'16 30
28 Dodamgaslanda 2021'02'17 27
29 Wennappuwa 2021'02'19 19
30

Sabaragamuwa

Nivithigala 2021'03'08 34
31 Embilipitiya 2021'02'22 24
32 Kegalle 2021'02'09 35
33 Balangoda 2021'02'19 28
34 Dehiovita 2021'02'23 52
35

Eastern

Seruwawila   2021'02'18  14
36 Kuchchaveli 2021'03'10 12
37 Trincomalee 2021'02'15 21
38 Valachchena 2021'03'12 96
39 Northern Vauniya  2021'02'23  13

Full Total 39 1222

10.5 Programme on Non Communicable Diseases (NCD) 

	 This programme is implemented at the provincial level for the youth cadets of the National Youth Corps 
Training Center in association with the health centers under the Ministry of Health, Nutrition and Indigenous 
Medicine with a view to producing a healthy generation of youth. This programme is conducted in collaboration 
with the Ministry of Health by the help of its medical personnel.  

Srl. No. Province National Youth Corps 
Training Centers

Date on which the 
event took place Participation

1
Western

Katunayake 2021'02'23 15
2 Bulathsinhala 2021'02'25 46
3

Central

Naula 2021'02'25  35
4 Walapane 2021'03'01 27
5 Senkadagala 2021'02'16 22
6 Yatinuwara 2021'02'25 44
7

Southern

Galle 2021'02'05 35
8 Neluwa 2021'02'25 17
9 Akuressa 2021'03'05 32

10 Weeraketiya 2021'02'22 18
11 Suriyawewa 2021'03'05 20
12 Akmeemana 2021'02'25 17
13 Dikwella 2021'03'12 5
14 Lunugamvehera 2021'02'23 25
15

North Central

Kekirawa 2021'02'25 29
16 Kalawewa 2021'02'25 42
17 Anuradhapura 2021'03'03 35
18 Medirigiriya 2021'03'01 48
19 Galenbindunuwewa 2021'02'24 43
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20
Uva

Monaragala  2021'02'19  29
21 Wellawaya 25'02'2021 23
22 Siyambalanduwa 2021'02'25 23
23

North Western

Kuliyapitiya 2021'02'25 11
24 Wariyapola 2021'03'01 55
25 Mawathagama 2021'02'16 28
26 Panduwasnuwara 2021'02'16 30
27 Wennappuwa 2021'03'08 16
28

Sabara-gamuwa

Nivithigala 2021'03'08 40
29 Embilipitiya 2021'02'24 29
30 Kegalle 2021'02'16 36
31 Dehiovita 2021'02'24 89
32

Eastern

Ampara 2021'03'05 29
33 Seruwawila 2021'02'25 17
34 Kuchchaveli      2021'03'12 15
35 Valachchena 2021'03'12 102
36 Northern Vauniya   2021'02'23  16 

Total 1143

10.6 Essay and Debate Contests and Quiz Competitions
	 Essay competitions are held at the center level to represent all cadets. These competitions will be held in 
Sinhala and Tamil media and a valuable certificate will also be awarded to the first, second and third places of the 
competition. 
These debate contests are organized by upholding the freedom of expression of the youth cadets who make their way 
to follow the leadership and personality development training course of the National Youth Corps and affording them an 
opportunity to put their capacity of reasoning literacy to test. These contests are worked off at the center level and the 
selection of teams is made at the class level. The number of members who can compete in one team is 04. Certificates 
will be awarded to the winning team. These encounters are also conducted in the media of Sinhala and Tamil.
Furthermore, the quiz contests are organized with the view to enhancing the general knowledge and extracurricular 
awareness of the young cadets who join the National Youth Corps and also, to identifying young men and women 
with special talents at the provincial and national levels. These contests are held at the center level. The number of 
contestants per team is 04 and the certificates are awarded to the winners. 

Programmes Number of Events 
conducted Participation

Essay Contests – Centre Level 54 3762
Debate Contests – Centre Level 54 3625
Quiz Competitions – Centre Level 54 3701
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10.7 Disater Management Programme 
	 With the intention of developing the leadership skills of the young men and women of the country in an 
emergency situation of disaster, the National Youth Corps joining hands with the Ministry of Disaster Management 
make it a point to conduct special one-day programmes for the youth cadets. This programme is implemented in 25 
districts covering all the centers and one representative center will be selected for each of those 25 districts. At the 
end of the programme, the Ministry of Disaster Management will also award a valuable certificate to the participating 
cadets.

Srl. No. Province National Youth Corps  
Training Centers

Date on which the 
event took place Participation

1 Western Katunayake 2021.04.07 103
11 Southern Galle 2021.04.09 59
12 Neluwa 2021.03.31 129
14 Weeraketiya 2021.04.01 64
15 Suriyawewa 2021.04.01 71
17 Dikwella 2021.05.04 50
19 Weerawila 2021.04.01 61
30 Siyambalanduwa 2021.04.23 40
31 North Western Kuliyapitiya 2021.03.29 61
32 Wariyapola 2021.04.07 207
34 Panduwasnuwara 2021.04.06 105
36 Nattandiya 2021.01.04 63
37 Wennappuwa 2021.04.01 56
39 Sabaragamuwa Nivithigala 2021.04.01 101
42 Kegalle 2021.04.22 104
44 Dehiovta 2021.04.06 143
46 Seruwawila 2021.04.01 37
50 Dehiattakandiya 2021.04.05 60

Total 18 1514

10.8 Sport Meets (Centre Level)

Sport events of Volleyball (Women / Men), Six-over Cricket (Women / Men), Netball (Women), Football (Men), Elle 
(Women / Men), Kabadi (Women / Men), 100m Sprint (Women / Men) , 400m x 4 (Women / Men), 100m x 4 (Women 
/ Men), 200m (Women / Men), 400m (Women / Men) and 800m (Women / Men) are worked off in these competitions. 
Certificates are awarded to the first, second and third places for the athletics and team events. 

Srl. No. Province National Youth Corps Training 
Centers

Date on which the 
event took place Participation

1
Western 

Katunayake 21'04'09 143
2 Divulapitiya 21'04'09 148
3 Bulathsinhala 21'04'23 235
4

Central

Gampola 21'04'09 198
5 Naula 21'04'09 165
6 Nuwara Eliya 21'04'09 67
7 Walapane 21'04'09 103
8 Senkadagala 21'04'09 73
9 Yatinuwara 21'04'09 105
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10

Southern

Galle 21'04'21 130
11 Neluwa 21'04'21 168
12 Akuressa 21'04'09 172
13 Weeraketiya 21'04'09 88
14 Suriyawewa 21'04'08 142
15 Akmeemana 21'04'09 72
16 Dikwella 21'04'09 82
17 Lunugamwehera 21'04'02 79
18 Weerawila 21'04'08 87
19

North Central

Kekirawa 21'04'09 171
20 Kalawewa 21'04'09 135
21 Anuradhapura 21'04'09 75
22 Mediriguriya 21'04'09 132
23 Galenbindunuwewa 21'04'09 166
24

Uva

Bandarawela 21'04'09 164
25 Mahiyanganaya 21'04'09 141
26 Thanamalwila 21'04'09 57
27 Monaragala 21'04'09 170
28 Wellawaya 21'04'09 111
29 Siyambalanduwa 21'04'08 95
30

North Western

Kuliyapitiya 21'04'09 90
31 Wariyapola 21'04'09 320
32 Mawathagama 21'04'09 211
33 Panduwasnuwara 21'07'30 175
34 Nattandiya 21'04'09 107
35 Wennappuwa 21'07'19 102
36 Alawwa 21'07'30 133
37

Sabaragamuwa

Nivithigala 21'04'08 217
38 Galigamuwa 21'04'09 167
39 Embilipitiya 21'04'09 185
40 Kegalle 21'04'09 214
41 Balangoda 21'04'09 110
42 Dehiovta 21'04'09 209
43

 

Seruwawila 21'04'23 65
44 Gomarankadawala 21'04'09 32
45 Kuchchaveli 21'04'09 60
46 Trincomalee 21'04'09 101
47 Valachchena 21'04'09 242
48

Northern
Mullaitivu 21'04'09 29

49 Mannar 21'04'08 131
50 Vauniya 21'04'09 126

Total 51 6700
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10.9 Life Ladder (Tharuna Diviyata Harimaga) Programme  
	 This project, in accordance with the concept of the Director / Chairman of the National Youth 
Corps, Col. Darshana Ratnayake, has been implemented with the objective of bringing forth talented 
young men and women all over the island for the sports of Volleyball, Air Rifle, Archery and Netball and 
raising them up to the national and international level. This project has been worked off under several 
phases. Under the first phase thereof, youths were liaised up through social media, applications were 
thereafter invited and the respective candidates directed to the nearest Youth Corps Center where the first 
interview in that connection was held. In the second phase thereof, arrangements were made to set up a 
sports pool from among the selected group of sportspersons. Accordingly, the selections of sportsmen and 
sportswomen for this sports pool of the National Youth Corps were made in the month of December 2021 
at the Torrington Playground, Colombo 07 and 41 male and female   players were slotted into this sports 
pool.

10.10 Community Development Programme

This programme is intended to accomplish a task that is beneficial to the general public in the area where 
the center is located, making use of the labour contribution of the trainees of the training centers. Examples 
of these types of work include cleaning up the local hospital, cleaning up the roads, implementing dengue 
control programmes, etc. Through this exercise, it is expected that the trainees will take an interest in 
public works, get themselves motivated to protect public places, understand their duties towards society, 
etc. while exposing them to training for practicing social values. 
These community care programmes are worked out at the center level and all centers make it a point to 
implement at least one programme by the trainees at each stage of their training. 

Srl. 
No. Province

National Youth 
Corps Training 

Centers

Date on which 
the event took 

place
Participation

1
Western

Katunayake 2021'03'04 29
2 Bulathsinhala 2021'03'04 41
3

Central

Gampola 2021'03'05 45
4 Naula 2021'03'10 41
5 Walapane 2021'03'04 9
6 Senkadagala 2021'03'10 20
7 Yatinuwara 2021'03'18 36
8

Southern

Galle 2021'03'03 33
9 Neluwa 2021'03'04 6

10 Akuressa 2021'02'05 33
11 Weeraketiya 2021'03'04 15
12 Suriyawewa 2021'02'24 22
13 Akmeemana 2021'03'04 14
14 Weerawila 2021'03'04 20
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15
North Central

Anuradhapura 2021'03'08 40
16 Medirigiriya 2021'03'04 39
17

Uva
Bandarawela 2021'03'10 20

18 Monaragala 2021'03'17 24
19 Siyambalanduwa 2021'03'04 19
20

North Western

Kuliyapitiya 2021'03'04 14
21 Wariyapola 2021'04'01 100
22 Mawathagama 2021'03'08 15
23 Panduwasnuwara 2021'03'04 23
24 Dodamgaslanda 2021'03'04 30
25 Nattandiya 2021'02'09 25
26 Wennappuwa 2021'03'05 18
27

Sabaragamuwa

Nivithigala 2021'03'05 40
28 Embilipitiya 2021'03'02 26
29 Kegalle 2021'03'04 28
30 Balangoda 2021'04'03 23
31 Dehiovita 2021'03'04 75
32

Eastern

Ampara 2021'04'01 72
33 Seruwawila 2021'03'04 14
34 Gomarankadwala 2021'03'27 25
35 Kuchchaveli 2021'03'05 6

Total 35 1040

 

10.11 Referral of Trainees after rehabilitation from drug addiction 
to the Vocational Training Courses

In collaboration with the National Board for the Control of Dangerous Drugs, a series of drug prevention 
programmes was conducted throughout the island and the first programme thereof was initiated at the 
Katunayake Training Centre with the participation of 28 trainees who had completed the preliminary 
treatment course including those persons who have gone through the rehabilitation process on being 
addicted to drugs. Through this course of training, with their advancement in life in mind, the young men 
and women concerned out of such trainees will be provided with training necessary for them to have 
reintegrated into the society whilst scholarships for vocational courses for those interested in following 
such courses are on offer under the scheme of this rehabilitation. Accordingly, 05 trainees out of them have 
been awarded scholarships to follow vocational training courses of their choice. 
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10.12 Summary of the Youth Development Programmes  
(Field-wise)

Field of Programme Programme Participation

Skill Development  
Programme

Outbound Adventure Based Training 

565Youth Cadets – 510

 External Parties - 55

Health Promotion 
Programme

Narcotic Drug Prevention Programme 3520

Adolescent Health and Sexually Trans-
mitted Diseases Programme 1222

Non Communicable Diseases Pro-
gramme  1143

Social Development Pro-
gramme

Disaster Management Programme 1514

Community Development Programme  1040

Personality Development 
Programme

Essay Competition 3762

Debate Contest 3625

Quiz Contests of Centers 3701

Provincial Sport Meets 6700

Total 26,792
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	 11. Social Empowerment Programmes 

The National Youth Corps, being in the forefront of advocating the objectives of widening the range of experience of the 
trainees, developing good attitudes in the young cadets, enhancing the sense of pride of the labour, developing 
the sense of patriotism, building a good social relationship in them and also for them to gain practical experience 
of interpersonal and inter-institutional relations, build human and social sensitivity, etc., sets in motion a host of 
social empowerment programmes towards that end. 	

‘Senehe Piyasa’ Housing Project
The 'Senehe Piyasa' housing project has been implemented under the Community Development Programme with the 
aim of gifting the society a sensitive generation of youth by imparting an understanding about the needs of others by 
getting the young trainees engaged in a mission of building a house for the sake of the poor, low-income or disabled 
families due to various reasons who find it impossible to afford a need of a house by themselves alone.
Construction of 58 new houses, one house each from one training centre will be undertaken under this initiative. This 
project is an exercise the young cadets themselves engage in overseeing its planning and putting into practice and this 
whole effort envisages the establishment of a sort of intended experience expected of it in the minds of young cadets.

t
 
 
 
 
 
 

‘Jeevithayata Jeevayak’ Blood Donation Programme
In order to meet the shortage of blood in the blood reserve of the Blood Bank due to the Corona pandemic, the National 
Youth Corps made a request from all generous blood donors of the country to join hand with the blood donation 
campaigns organized at the NYC centres throughout the country over a period of one week. Accordingly, these blood 
donation campaigns organized at the NYC training centres got underway adhering to the relevant health guidelines 
even during the period of travel restrictions.
A large number of people came forward to donate blood to the Blood Bank at every centre voluntarily contributing to 
this act of charity in an overwhelming manner. The National Youth Corps was commended by the then Minister of Youth 
and Sports for undertaking an initiative of this magnitude.
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Making a contribution towards manufacturing ten thousand beds  
for the covid treatment centres

With the pandemic situation that was rampant, the Ministry of Health went on to set up new Covid treatment 
centres all throughout the island. As there was a shortage of necessary beds for this purpose, the contribution of 
the trainees of the National Youth Corps towards the programme was very much at hand by way of joining in the 
programme of producing beds launched by the Ministry of Youth and Sports as a quick response to address the 
need of such beds at the treatment centres. As such, the trainees at the NYC training centres across the island 
devoted themselves to the relevant task very efficiently. Also, the training centres selected from among the NYC 
training centres were temporarily handed over to the Ministry of Health and regional health authorities for using 
them as Covid treatment centres. Even during this period, the NYC courses concerned was continued to be 
conducted via online system uninterruptedly.

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

‘Susumata Saviyak’ Programme
In order to provide relief to the people affected by national calamities such as floods and landslides that occurred 
from time to time all throughout the island, the helping out programme of 'Susumata Saviyak' was put into gear 
by the NYC training centres lending a helping hand to the people in distress.
According to the National Youth Corps social care program to provide relief to the victims of floods and landslides 
in Ratnapura and Kegalle districts, the distribution of dry food items to the families affected by the floods and 
landslides in the Kiriella Divisional Secretariat of Ratnapura district was undertaken with the ready intervention 
of the National Youth Corps Training Centre in Balangoda.
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The distribution of dry food items to the disaster affected families in Ruwanwella, Warakapola and 
Aranayaka Divisional Secretary Divisions of Kegalle District was undertaken with the intervention of the 
National Youth Corps Training Centers in Galigamuwa and Kegalle. Accordingly, the families of flood-
affected people at No. 95, Algama Upper Grama Niladhri Division, who were in temporarily built camps at 
the Talgahadeniya Sanasa Hall under Warakapola Divisional Secretariat and the landslide victims at No. 
47/F, Elangimitiya Grama Niladhri Division and at No, 33/B, Devanagala Grama Niladhri Division under 
Aranayaka Divisional Secretary’s Division and the displaced victims of natural disasters at Mahalla Grama 
Niladhri Division under Ruwanwella Divisional Secretary’s Division were offered with dry rations of food.
The Yakkala National Youth Corps Training Centre provided bottles of drinking water to 80 families who 
were affected by the floods in the Grama Niladhari Divisions of Gampaha, Pahalgama and Kosovita. 
With the contribution of the youth to save the Sasuna, the National Youth Corps Training Centres of the 
Eastern Province provided goods worth three hundred thousand rupees to the monks living in the Arisimale 
Aranya Senasana Reserve in the Pulmude area of Trincomalee District with the intension of easing off the 
problematic situations cropped up in the face of the Corona pandemic for the sake of their outpost facilities 
in a devoted gesture of giving alms and this task was organized and delivered to the intended clergy in the 
remote forest hermitage within a very short period of 05 days.

‘Sathva Mithuru Sathkara’ Programme

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
With a view to fulfilling our social obligation for making room for the survival of every living being around us 
in our environment within the context of building the soft skills in the youthfulness in a gesture of kindness 
and compassion  towards animals, the National Youth Corps centres across the island, in a special 
humanitarian programme to quench the hunger of those animals close to us, including the street dogs, 
who are helpless due to lack of food on a daily basis, set in motion the ‘Sathva Mithuru Sathkara’ animal 
friendly programme as a humanitarian campaign. This was a project open to the trainees of all centres 
throughout the island, past trainees of the Youth Corps as well as the staff members of every centre.
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“Y - Green” Youth Home Garden Cultivation Project  
 
 
 
 
 
 

The “Y - Green” Home Garden Cultivation Project was launched as an active national agri-entrepreneurial 
youth home garden cultivation drive in a manner that will be beneficial to the day to day life of the young 
men and women linked to the National Youth Corps in view of the facts such as the rampant situation of 
the Covid - 19 pandemic in the country and the minimal availability of space for social normalization due 
to travel and movement restrictions and quarantine regulations and also, owing to the fact that there is 
impending problems of food security that may occur in the future. 
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	 General Policies

1. Basis of Preparation
The financial statements of the entity comprise the statement of financial position, statement of financial perfor-
mance, statement of changes in net assets and statement of cash flow together with accounting policies and notes 
which have been prepared on accrual basis in accordance with the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Sri Lanka.
These Financial statements are presented in Sri Lankan Rupees. 

2. Events Occurring Subsequent to the Balance Sheet
All material events occurring after the balance sheet date have been considered in the financial statements.

3. Assets and Base of its Valuation

3.1 Cash and Cash Equivalent
Cash and short-term deposits in the Statement of Financial Position comprise cash at banks, and on hand and short 
–term deposits with a maturity of three or less. Cash and cash equivalents in the cash flow statement comprise cash 
and short - term deposits as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts.

3.2 Short Term Investment
Short term investment comprises short term deposits held in commercial banks with a maturity of three or less. The 
interest income of the deposit is credited to the respective fund which is invested.
 
3.3 Receivables
Receivables are stated at the amounts they are estimated to realize, net of provisions for bad and doubtful receiv-
ables.

3.4 Capital Work - in progress
Projects at work in progress are carried out at cost.

3.5 Property, Plant and Equipment

National Youth Corps prepared financial statements from year 2015 onwards. Assets were revalued by the committee 
appointed by the Ministry of National Policies & Economic Affairs based on the recommendation of the council of 
NYC since the value of the assets had not been previously accounted.
Buildings occupied by the NYC have not been revalued since the title of those lands were not under the ownership of 
NYC. The construction cost incurred from 2011 onwards has been depreciated at the rate of 5% since those con-
struction was based on capital funds released by the treasury. The vehicles not belonging to the NYC excluding three 
wheelers have been depreciated at the rate of 20%.
NYC applies cost model to Property, Plant and Equipment and records at cost of purchase or construction together 
with any incidental expenses thereon less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment loss. All other 
repairs and maintenance are charged to the statement of financial performance during the financial period in which 
they are incurred.
Where item of Property, Plant and Equipment are fully depreciated, the entire class of asset is revalued by consid-
ering the fair value changes in the asset or reviewing the life time of the asset and adjusting in accordance with the 
SLIPSAS 03 “Accounting policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.”
Where item of Property, Plant and Equipment is revalued, the entire class of such assets is revalued. Any revaluation 
surplus is recognized in Other Comprehensive Income and accumulated in equity in the Asset Revaluation Reserve, 
except to the extent that it reverses a revaluation decrease of the same asset previously recognized in the Statement 
of Profit or Loss, in which case the increase is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss. A revaluation deficit 
is recognized in the Statement of Profit or Loss, except to the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same 
asset recognized in the asset revaluation reserve.
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Accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and 
the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any revaluation reserve relating to the 
particular asset being sold is transferred to retained earnings.

Depreciation

Depreciation on assets is calculated using straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued amount over their 
estimated useful lives, as follows:

Building & Structure 			   5%
Plant & Machinery			   20%
Motor Vehicle				    20%
Furniture & Fittings			   10%
Office Equipment			   20%
Training Equipment			   20%
Music & Sports Equipment		  20%
Computer & Accessories			  20%
Electrical Equipment			   20%
Library Books				    12.5%

The depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment begins from the year in which the assets were purchased or 
constructed and no depreciation is charged in the year of disposal. 

3.6 Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired by the entity are initially recognized at cost less accumulated amortization and any accu-
mulated impairment losses.

4. Inventory
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable value on the basis of FIFO.

5. Liabilities and Provisions
All known liabilities have been accounted in preparing the financial statements and adequate provision have been 
made for liabilities which are known to exist.

5.1 Current Liabilities
A liability is considered as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, due to be settled within 
twelve months after the reporting period or there is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of liability for at least 
twelve months after the reporting period

5.2 Employee Benefit Obligation
Defined Contribution Plans - Employees’ Provident Fund and Employees’ Trust Fund Employees are eligible for Em-
ployees’ Provident Fund Contributions and Employees’ Trust Fund Contributions in line with the respective statutes 
and regulations. NYC contributes 12% and 3% of gross emoluments of employees to Employees’ Provident Fund 
and Employees’ Trust Fund respectively.

5.3 Retirement Gratuity 
Provision is made in the financial statements for retiring gratuity which may be fully due for payment, under the 
payment of gratuity act no 12 of 1983. Retirement benefit costs for all employees who have completed more than five 
years of continuous service with NYC.
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5.4 Government Grants and Subsidies

Government grants are accounted on receipt basis. Grant related to recurrent expenditure is credited to the State-
ment of Financial Performance under the operating revenue.
Capital grant is credited to the Differed Income Capital grant and Capital grant is differed and recognized in a state-
ment of financial performance on a systematic basis over the useful life of the asset.

5.5 Deferred Income
Capital grant is deferred and recognized in a statement of financial performance on a systematic basis over the 
useful life of the assets.

6. Revenue and Expense Recognition

6.1 Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the entity, and the reve-
nue and associated costs incurred or to be incurred can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable.

6.2 Expenditure Recognition
All the expenses related to the financial year in the form of outflows or consumption of assets or incurrences of liabili-
ties are recognized on accrual basis in the Statement of Financial Performance.
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My No. : SYA/A/NYC/1/20/14                                                          20th of December 2022

Chairman,
National Youth Corps.

Auditor General's Report in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 on the finan-
cial statements and other legal and regulatory requirements for the year ended 31st December 2021 of the 
National Youth Corps
___________________________________________________________________________

The above report has been sent herewith.

Sgd./ W.P.C. Wickramaratna
Auditor General

Copies to :    1. Secretary, Ministry of Sports and Youth Affairs
                     2. Secretary, Ministry of Finance  
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NATIONAL AUDIT OFFICE

SYA/A/NYC/1/21/14                                                     			   …. of December 2022	 	
                                                                           	                                                                                                                       	
	                    
Chairman,
National Youth Corps. 

Auditor General's Report in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 on the financial 
statements and other legal and regulatory requirements for the year ended 31st December 2021 of the 
National Youth Corps
___________________________________________________________________________

1.    Financial Statements
1.1  Qualified Opinion
The audit of the financial statements of the National Youth Corps for the year ended 31 December 2021 
comprising the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2020 and the statement of financial 
performance and the statement of changes in net assets for the year then ended and also, the cash flow 
statement, the notes to financial statements and the summary of significant accounting policies for the 
year then ended was carried out under my direction in pursuance of provisions in Article 154 (1) of the 
Constitution of the Democratic Socialist Republic of Sri Lanka read with the provisions of the National 
Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 and the Finance Act, No. 38 of 1971. My report will be tabled in due course in 
Parliament in terms of Article 154 (6) of the Constitution. 
I am of the opinion that, except for the effects of the matters described in the Qualified Opinion section of 
my report, the accompanying financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the 
National Youth Corps as at 31 December 2021, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the 
year then ended in accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards.

1.2	  Basis for the Qualified Opinion 
	
(a) 	 In accordance with the Paragraph 65 of the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standard No. 07, 
the residual value and the effective life span of an asset should be reviewed at least at the end of each annual 
reporting period. However, action had not been taken to adjust the estimate of the effective life span of 
these assets valued at Rs. 410.2 million in the accounts as at 31 December 2021 after having it subject to 
revaluation, even though such assets were fully depreciated and still in use.
	
(b)	 08 training centers, construction work of which had been completed during the period from the year 
2018 to the year 2021 at a cost of Rs. 744.5 million, instead of being accounted for under property, plants and 
equipment, were shown in the financial statements as work in progress even as of 31 December 2021.

(c)	 During the period from 2016 to 2021, sum of Rs. 29 million spent for the improvements to buildings 
of 31 training centers, construction work of which had been completed and a sum of Rs. 243 million spent 
for the construction of 18 building units in 11 training centers had been shown in the financial statements 
as work in progress without being subject to capitalization.

I conducted my audit in accordance with Sri Lanka Auditing Standards (SLAuSs). My responsibilities 
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of my report. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for my qualified opinion.
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1.3 Other information contained in the 2021 Annual Report of the Corps

The ‘other information’ means the information included in the 2021 Annual Report of the National Youth 
Corps that is expected to be given to me after the date of this audit, but, not included in the financial state-
ments and my audit report in that respect. The management is responsible for this other information.
My opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and I, in any manner, do not 
guarantee or make any statement on them.
My responsibility on the audit of the financial statements is to read the above mentioned other informa-
tion when they are made available and to consider if such other information is significantly inconsistent 
with the financial statements or the knowledge I   obtained during the course of the audit or otherwise.
When reading the 2021 Annual Report of the Corps, if I conclude that there are significant misrepresenta-
tions, such matters should be communicated to the governing parties for correction. If there exist further 
uncorrected misrepresentations, they will be included in the report that will be tabled in due course in 
Parliament in terms of Article 154 (6) of the Constitution.

1.4  Responsibilities of the management and those parties charged with governance for the Financial 
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a true and fair view in 
accordance with Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards, and for such internal control as manage-
ment determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the ability of the Corps to 
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going 
concern basis of accounting unless management either intend to liquidate the fund or to cease operations, 
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
       Those parties charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process 
of the Corps.

       As per sub section 16(1) of the National Audit Act No. 19 of 2018, the corps is required to maintain 
proper books and records of all its income, expenditure, assets and liabilities, to enable annual and period-
ic financial statements to be prepared of the Corps.

1.5 Responsibility of the auditor in the audit of Financial Statements
	
My objective as a whole is to provide a reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from 
frauds and errors that occurred due to inaccurate false statements and to release the auditor's report along 
with my opinion. While fair assurance is a high-level guarantee, it may not always be an assurance that 
the auditing in accordance with Sri Lanka Audit Standards will always detect incorrect substantial errors. 
Frauds and errors are likely to result in substantial disclosures, either due to individual or collective effects, 
and the substantiality of it may depend on the impact of the economic decisions made by the users, based 
on these financial statements.
The audit was carried out by me with professional judgment and professional skepticism in keeping with 
the Sri Lanka Audit Standards. And, I further,
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•	 Designed and implemented audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances in 
identifying and assessing the risks of material misstatements that could result in the financial statements 
owing to frauds and errors, in setting up a basis for the audit opinion that was expressed. The risk of not 
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is more severe than that caused by the reasons 
such as material misstatements resulting from erroneous recording and collusion, preparation of forged 
documents, intentional omissions or the override of internal controls.

•	 Acquired an understanding on the internal control relevant to the audit of the Corps in   order to 
design circumstantially suitable audit procedures, even though it was not with the intention of expressing 
an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal control.

•	 Evaluated the suitability of the accounting policies used, the reasonableness of the accounting 
estimates and the related disclosures made by the management.

•	 Concluded on the relevance of applying the going concern basis of the entity’s sustainability 
for accounting purposes based on the audit evidence acquired as to whether there exists a substantial 
uncertainty on the sustainability of the National Youth Corps due to events or conditions. In case I 
determine that such uncertainty exists, my report should pay attention to the disclosures regarding the 
financial statements and if those disclosures are not sufficient, my opinion must be modified. However, 
continued sustainability may cease to exist due to future events or conditions.

•	 Evaluated the fact that the transactions and events underlying the structure and content of the 
financial statements have been incorporated in a reasonable and fair manner and the overall presentation 
of the financial statements including disclosures.

The governing parties concerned will be made aware of the significant audit findings, major weaknesses of 
the internal controls and other matters identified during the course of my audit.

2.      Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

2.1	 National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 contains special provisions relating to the following 
requirements.

2.1.1	 In accordance with the requirements set out in Section 12 (a) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 
2018, I have, except for the observations made in the Qualified Opinion section of my report, obtained all 
the information and explanations required for the audit and as was evident according to my investigation, 
the Corps had continued to maintain proper financial records.
2.1.2	 The financial statements presented by the Corps in accordance with the requirements of Section 6 
(1) (d) (iii) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 are consistent with the previous year.
2.1.3	 The recommendations I made in the previous year, excluding the matters stated in paras 1.2 (a) 
and (d), have been included in the financial statements submitted in accordance with the requirement of 
Section 6 (i) (d) (iv) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.		
2.2	 In terms of the measures adopted and the amount of evidence that was obtained and within the 
limitation confined to material considerations, nothing met with my attention as to make the following 
statements.
2.2.1	 That any member of the governing body of the Corps has any direct or indirect interest in any 
contract entered into by the Corps which is out of the normal cause of business as per the requirement of 
section 12 (d) of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.
2.2.2	 That the Corps has not acted in a manner inconsistent with any applicable written law, general and 
special directions issued by the governing body of the Corps as per the requirement of section 12 (f) of the 
National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018.
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Reference to law / direction  
----------------------------------

(a)	 Public Enterprises Circular No. PED/12 	
	 dated 2 June 2003
(i)	 Para 5.1 

     (ii)  Para 6.5.1 

(b)	 Public Accounts Circular No. 842
dated 19 December 1978  

(c)	 Section (4) of the Youth Corps
Act, No. 21 of 2022

Observations
------------------

As per the circular instructions, the corporate 
plan had not been prepared for the Corps.

Even though the financial statements should 
be submitted to the Auditor General within 
02 months after the end of the accounting 
year, the financial statements had been 
submitted after a delay of 09 months.

A fixed assets register for property, plant and 
equipment valued at Rs. 2,378 million as at 31 
December 2021 had not been maintained by 
the Corps.

Even though it has been stated that 3 
committees should be appointed for 
vocational training, youth development 
and placement as may be necessary for the 
administration of the affairs of the council 
and the council may delegate its powers to 
those committees, the National Youth Corps 
from its inception in the year 2002 had not so 
acted. 

2.2.3	 That the Corps has performed in a manner inconsistent with its powers, functions and duties as 
per the requirement of section 12 (g) of the National Audit Act, 2018.

2.2.4	 That the resources of the Corps had not been procured and utilized economically, efficiently and 
effectively within the time frames and in compliance with the applicable laws as per the requirement of 
section 12 (h) of the National Audit Act.

3.       Other Matters
	
 (a)	 A sum amounting to Rs. 14 million in relation to the consumption of electricity and water used by 
the Small Business Development Division, an organization outside the Corps and for rates thereof for the 
period from 2015 to 2021 and an over payment of Rs. 2 million for the construction of the Wennappuwa 
training center made to the relevant construction company as stated in other receivables in the financial 
statements, had not been recovered even as at 15 September 2022.

(b)	 Action had not been taken even at 20 September 2022 to settle a sum amounting to Rs. 1 million 
payable for outbound training shown under other payables for more than one year and a sum amounting 
to Rs. 1.4 million for more than three years shown in the financial statements as accrued expenses as at 31 
December 2021.
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c)	 Action until up to this point of time had not been taken to have settled the construction advances 
totaling Rs. 62.6 million given for the 04 training centers, the construction contracts of which were 
cancelled and also, for the construction of the precast building at the Gomarankadawala Training Centre, 
the construction work of which has been stopped due to deficiencies in the preliminary bills of quantities, 
as of 31 December 2021.

(d)	 In pursuance of the the Cabinet Decision dated 09 August 2016, the contract for the construction 
of 10 new centres and 21 building units of the existing centres of the National Youth Corps had been 
awarded to the National Equipment and Machinery Organization outside of the open tender procedure. 
Due to setback of the construction progress, it had been decided to cancel these construction contracts as 
per the Cabinet Decision dated 30 January 2020. However, the National Youth Corps, despite a lapse of a 
period of two years following the cancellation of these construction works, had not taken action to have 
settled Rs. 37.6 million out of the total advance money amounting to Rs. 109.2 million given by it to the 
said Organization during the years 2016 and 2017.

(e)     The 8 vehicles  used by the head office of the National Youth Corps, the registered ownership of 
which is held by the other Ministries and Institutions carrying a value of Rs. 31.5 million had not been 
taken over by the Corps in favour of it to date.  

(f)	 Out of the 62 lands where the training centres have been established as at 31 December 2021, and 
which are transferable to the Corps, only 19 lands had been acquired to the Corps and the acquisition of 
the remaining 43 lands had not been so far finalized.

(g)	 Work commenced in the year 2017 including the work in progress relating to the cancelled 
construction contracts of 02 training centres to the value of Rs. 20 million and the balance work of the 
Gomarankadawala precast building valued at Rs. 3.7 million as of 31 December 2021 had not been slated 
for their resumption of work up until 31 October 2022.

(h)	 Even though a new Act should be passed after rescinding the existing Youth Corps Act in order 
to carry out the work of empowering the community of youth in the country even better and more 
effectively, according to the Cabinet Decision dated 15 December 2011, action had not been taken in that 
regard in pursuance of such Cabinet Decision despite a period of more than 11 years had passed by.

(i)	 Action had not been taken to refer the Youth Corps trainees to the government vocational training 
institutes having suitably prepared the training courses in conjunction with them in order to expose such 
trainees to such courses of national vocational qualifications in various fields, targeting the international 
labour market in accordance with para 4 (ii) of the Orders made under Section 18 of the National Youth 
Corps Act, No. 21 of 2002 on 10 October 2003. 

(j)	 The Corps had directed the trainees to provide them with vocational training to follow 132 
courses in 66 private institutions whilst it was only to 20 vocational courses in the case of the government 
institutes. Even though a maximum training fee of Rs. 100,000 per trainee for that purpose had been 
fixed, the trainees had followed courses incurring the course fees at costs ranging from Rs.100,000 to 
Rs. 800,000. The Corps had not put in place a system in order to monitor the trainees directed to the 
vocational training courses until they complete the respective course and secure employment.

W.P.C. Wickramaratna,
Auditor General
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Observations  
of the Chairman  

on the  
Auditor General’s  

Report





Auditor General
National Audit Office, No. 306/72,
Polduwa Road, Battaramulla.

Auditor General's Report in terms of Section 12 of the National Audit Act, No. 19 of 2018 on the financial 
statements and other legal and regulatory requirements for the year ended 31st December 2021 of the 
National Youth Corps

01.	  Financial Statements
1.1 	 Opinion

1.2	 Comments on the Financial Statements

(a)	 Deviation from the Sri Lanka Public Sector Accounting Standards 

(i) 	 It is admitted that action has not been taken with regard to assets owned by the National Youth 
Corps valued at Rs. 410,208,852/- in accordance with the Paragraph 65 of the Sri Lanka Public Sector 
Accounting Standard No. 07. I wish to take action to revalue these assets and make entries accordingly in 
the accounts of the year 2022 as they have now depreciated fully.

(ii)	 The approval of the Council has been obtained to work out the depreciation of the software and 
websites shown in the accounting policies at a percentage of 25%. I however admit that the percentage of 
25% has not been accurately recorded due to an omission when policies were spelt out in the statements of 
accounts. I will record it correctly when preparing the accounts for the year 2022.

 (b)	 The matter pointed out by this query has been rectified in the accounts of 2022. 

 (c)    A sum amounting to Rs. 518,467,445/- in relation to National Youth Corps Training Centers 
at Gomarankadawala, Gampola, Monaragala Phase I, Monaragala Phase II, Monaragala Phase III, 
Monaragala Phase IV, Naula ABT and Trincomalee has been shown as work in progress because of the 
reason that the final payment of the respective bills had not come up for submission as of 31/12/2021 
of the accounting year 2021 even though the building construction work of these training centers had 
been completed by 31.12.2021. Accordingly, the related final bill settlement of the Gomarankadawala and 
Trincomalee training centers has been executed on 01.06.2022 whilst the Monaragala Phase IV bills have 
been settled on 18.01.2022. Arrangements have therefore been made to capitalize them and present it in 
the financial statements of the year 2022.

(d)	 The construction work of the training centers pointed out by this query have been completed 
under the rehabilitation programmes and the final bills thereof have also been settled.



(e)	 Even though a sum amounting to Rs. 226,028,860/- is shown as work in progress in the financial 
statements having regard to the Training Centers of the National Youth Corps at Tissamaharamaya, 
Lunugamwehera and Dehiattakandiya, the building construction work of these training centers will be 
completed by 31.12.2021 and the centers will be continued. However, the final bills of these centers have 
not been settled. As the process of the settlement of the final bills are currently ongoing, I will take action 
to correct them in the financial statements of 2022.	

(f)	 By 31.12.2021, the work has been completed through the sub-contractors and the certificates of 
completion of the construction contract work of these training centers have been submitted through audit 
queries. Capitalization of the construction work of such centers will be carried out in the year 2022.

1.3	 Responsibilities of the management and those parties charged with governance for the Financial 
Statements

1.4	 Responsibility of the auditor in the audit of Financial Statements

 2.2.2	

(i)	 Paragraph 5.1	
I would like to state that the corporate plan of the National Youth Corps for 2023-2027 has been prepared 
and referred to an expert consultant for editing purposes as of now.

(ii)	 Paragraph 6.5.1	
The financial statements for the year 2022 have been prepared and finalized by the month of May 2022, 
and submitted for the Board approval in June. Action will be taken to present the annual financial 
statements within the prescribed period having minimized such delay when preparing the accounts in the 
year 2022.

2.2.4

(a) 	 Management of Vehicles

Necessary action to secure the registered ownership of the vehicles belonging to the National Youth Corps 
as pointed out by the audit is being pursued. Even though there is no rapid progress shown in them, 
further measures are being taken as per the respective requirements.

Due to many issues such as the fact that these vehicles have been under different Ministries at different 
times and those Ministries are currently known by other names, it has become practically difficult to 
obtain the originals of the registrations of the respective vehicles. I would like to state that as a result of 
many such factors, the takeover of these vehicles to the National Youth Corps has been delayed to some 
extent.

(b)	 Management Inefficiencies

(i)  The total number of training centers of the National Youth Corps including its Hotel Training School, 
the Outbound Training Center and the Centers under construction is as shown hereunder.

		  Training Centers presently in operation	             57
		  Outbound Training Center	                            	 01
		  Hotel Training School 		                	  01
		  Centers under construction			                06
		  Total				                               	  65
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Out of the above centers, both the 02 centers namely, the Outbound Training Center and the Naula 
Training Center are located in the same land. Also, the Suriyawewa National Youth Corps Training Center 
is operative in a part of the Suriyawewa Mahaweli Complex of the Sri Lanka Mahaweli Authority. And 
also, the Kilinochchi Center is put to be operative in a part of the Kilinochchi District Sports Complex.

Accordingly, the number of lands that can be acquired from the premises where these centers are located 
is 62. Out of those 62 lands, work concerning the takeover of 19 lands has so far been carried out and the 
remaining 43 lands are in the process of being expropriated. Of these 43 lands, the acquisition activities 
related to 17 lands have been finalized to a certain extent, out of which the takeover of 07 lands has been 
recommended by the respective Divisional Secretaries and Provincial Land Commissioners and even 
submitted to the Commissioner General of Lands.

Also, there was a discussion under the chairmanship of the Commissioner General of Lands about 
the expropriation of the land where the National Youth Corps Training Centers are located and in 
that discussion, the officers of the Department of Land Commissioner General pointed out that it was 
accordingly suitable to acquire the lands that have seen the finalization of the matters pertaining to their 
takeover to a certain extent and to get the rest of the lands released under a nominal amount of tax at half 
a percent (1/2%) in terms of section 6 of the Government Land Ordinance.

As such, the Commissioner General of Lands has been requested to have the lands released which stand 
in their early stages of acquisition process under section 6 of the Government Land Ordinance at a 
nominal tax amount of half a percent (1/2%). Currently, the said requests are being conveyed by the Land 
Commissioner General Department to the respective Divisional Secretaries.

Center Value of the Work in 
Progress as at 31.12.2021 

(Rs.)

Reason for cancelling the Contract

Kotapola 18,149,844.00 The contract was canceled due to the slowly paced nature of the 
construction work of the project. Legal action has been initiat-
ed through the Attorney General to recover the remainder of 
the advance money from the contractor. This project has been 
handed over to the Vocational Training Authority following the 
approval of the Secretary of the Ministry.

Kalpitiya 1,826,345.00 The construction contract agreement of the Kalpitiya Training 
Center has been cancelled. The amount of money involving 
the performance bond and the advance guarantee kept by the 
contracting agency concerned with the bank has been recovered 
back to the National Youth Corps.

Goma-
ran-kad-
awala 
Precast 
Building 

3,692,442.00 Before the construction of the training center in Gomarankad-
awala, arrangements were underway to set up a precast training 
center at the said premises. However, when the construction 
work of the new training center in Gomarankadala was under-
way, the construction work of the precast building has come to a 
halt. It has been identified that there is a deficiency in the initial 
bills of quantities of this construction work. Such deficiencies 
will be sorted out and the remaining work of the building will 
be put to execution and the relevant bills will be settled accord-
ing to the   availability of provisions in the future. Action for the 
settlement of the advance money concerned therefrom will also 
follow.
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(c)	 Non-implementation of the Cabinet Decisions 

(i)	 The contract for the construction work involving 10 new training centers and 21 existing training 
center building units along with E1 & E2 type lavatory systems numbering 32 to be undertaken by the 
National Youth Corps had been offered to the National Equipment and Machinery Organization in 
2016 and 2017 without calling for bids for the respective construction works. However, due to the fact 
that this construction work by the said organization had not shown any reasonable progress, the related 
contract agreements were canceled by the decision of the Cabinet of Ministers No. 20/0166/220/007 
dated 30 January 2020. The said Cabinet Decision has also gone on to grant approval for the construction 
subcontractors who have shown more than 50% of the progress of the construction in the said assignments 
to go ahead with their work. Accordingly, 11 out of 13 building units and three E 1 type lavatory systems 
with more than 50% progress of the said construction work have been awarded to such subcontractors and 
the construction work thereof has now been completed by them.

Also, the same Cabinet Paper granted approval to call for tenders concerning the works of construction 
with less than 50% progress after having them subject to re-estimation. However, the Cabinet Paper No. 
21/1527/329/026 dated 2021.09.07 thereafter has given approval to construct the building units with less 
than 50% progress as well by the respective subcontractors. Accordingly, the construction work relating 
to the E 1 type lavatory system of the Suriyawewa Training Center with a progress less than 50% saw to its 
completion by having got the relevant subcontractor involved in it.

Furthermore, the remaining works of construction with less than 50% progress are slated to be put to 
execution on priority basis for the next 5 years as the projects that should be prioritized in the action plan 
were carried out in the first instance due to lack of sufficient funding provisions in the backdrop of the 
National Budget Circular No. 03/2022 dated 26.04.2022 on the management of public expenditure, in spite 
of the requests made for necessary provisions for seeing the completion of all these abruptly suspended 
works of construction during the year 2021.

(d)	 Accounts Receivable and Payable

(i)	 An amount of Rs. 4,162,172.06 (inclusive of tax) has been overpaid to Anthony Builders for the 
additional items of work in the construction of the Wennappuwa National Youth Corps Training Center. 
An amount of Rs. 2,186,129.50 (inclusive of tax) has been withheld as a retainer by the National Youth 
Corps at the time of making payments on the bills related to the works of construction. The finance 
division has been apprised to recover the said amount from the related retention amount and, in the 
case of the remaining amount of Rs. 1,976,042.56, the relevant contracting agency has informed this 
Headquarters to have the said remaining amount recovered from Maganeguma which was a project the 
said contracting party had carried out in association with it. The Ministry of Sports and Youth Affairs 
has also been apprised of in this regard and the said Ministry has in return informed the Maganeguma 
Institute in connection with the said matter. The letter referred to above has been submitted as Annex ‘01’.

(ii)	 Based on the recommendations made following the consultations at the meeting of the Audit and 
Management Committee of the National Youth Corps with regard to the amount of Rs. 13,144,155.57 
recoverable for the period from 2015 to 2020 against the charges for water, electricity and rates due from 
the Small Business Development Division, the approval of the National Youth Corps Council has been 
obtained to write off the said amount from the annual accounts. Accordingly, I will take action to make the 
relevant adjustments in the accounts for the year 2022.
Furthermore, from the year 2021, the Small Business Development Division will see to the settlement of 
the relevant bill values on monthly basis.
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(iii)	 The value of Rs. 1,006,529.80 remained to be shown as not settled has been written off from the 
books for the year 2022.

(iv)	 Arrangements have been made to settle the balance of Rs. 1,426,321/- that remained not settled 
under accrued expenditure as set out below. Accordingly, it will be included in the accounts for the year 
2022.

(e)	 Advance Receivable

(i)   The works of construction of the Gampola Training Center site had been completed by 31.12.2021 
and the final bills thereon had not been settled. The same contractor had attended to the construction 
work of the Senkadagala Training Center too and the advance amount to be settled had accordingly been 
paid out by this contractor himself together with the retention amount of money due to be settled by him 
at the time of the construction work of Gampola and the final bills of both the works of construction in 
Gampola and Senkadagala. The amount of Rs. 4,698,452.50 so owed by the said contractor for payment 
has accordingly been settled by him in the year 2022. 

(ii)  The construction contracts of the training centers at Welimada, Meegahakivula, Kotapola and 
Pelmadulla were cancelled. Accordingly, regarding the recovery of the advance payments of the training 
centers in Welimada and Meegahakivula, the matter so involved was produced before an adjudicator and 
the decision thereon was made on 28.02.2022. As the contractor was not in agreement with that decision, 
another arbitrator was appointed with the consent of both parties. Further work in that regard is ongoing 
and the first meeting thereof was held on 26.10.2022 while the next meeting concerned is scheduled to be 
held on 14.03.2023.
The construction contract agreements of the Kotapola Training Center have been canceled and the 
relevant file has been submitted to the Attorney General's Department to take legal action to recover the 
amount of advance money concerned. 

The construction work of Pelmadulla National Youth Corps Training Center has been cancelled and, since 
the contractor concerned is attending to the construction work of the Dambulla (Digampatana) National 
Youth Corps Training Center too, action will be   taken to recover the advance amount of money related to 
Pelmadulla National Youth Corps center from the money involving Pelmadulla NYC Center. Accordingly, 
an advance amount of Rs. 2,000,000.00 has been recovered on 15.03.2022 at the time of settling the bills 
of Dambulla Youth Corps. Action will be taken to have the balance amounts too deducted in the future 
payments.

Year Expenditure Description Amount Progress

2018 Furniture & Office 
Equipment (capital)

Richco Associated 15,985.00 Has been brought to Income 
during the year 2022

2019 Building Structure  
Payable

Ceylon Engineering 1,335,636.00 Has been credited to Income.

2019 Building Rehabilitation P.D.R. Siriwardhana 74,700.00 A board paper will be tabled 
for further instructions on the 
relevant payment.

Total 1,426,321.00
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Before constructing the Gomarankadawala training center, a precast training center was under 
construction at that premises. But during the construction of the new Gomarankadawala training center, 
the construction of the precast building has come to a halt. It has been identified that there is a deficiency 
in the initial bills of quantities of this construction work, and it has now been included in the action plan 
of 2023 with the purpose of restarting its construction. Action will be taken to settle up the remaining 
advance money at the time of the recommencement of such construction work.

(iii)   Due to the empowerment of the National Youth Corps, contracts of construction have been 
awarded to the National Equipment and Machinery Organization in pursuance of a Cabinet Paper for the 
construction of 10 new centers and 21 construction building units in the existing centers in the years 2016 
and 2014 without calling for tenders. However, owing to delay in construction by the said organization, 
all works of construction in the year 2020 were canceled by a Cabinet Paper to that effect. The advance 
amount of Rs. 71,618,995 paid to the said organization for this construction has been settled up so far 
out of the total advance concerned. Action will be taken to recover the advance amount of money worth 
Rs. 37,615,680 that remains to be further settled, at the time of the final bill settlement. Even though the 
National Equipment and Machinery Organization and the Building Department have been notified several 
times in writing and verbally to settle the bills concerned, no response thereto has been received as yet.

2.3	 Other matters

(i)  The National Youth Corps ventured into processing its annual accounts for the first time in 2015, at 
which time a fixed asset register was prepared.
It was developed and maintained using a computer Excell software, and subsequent to that year, many new 
centers were built up, and bulk purchases of goods were made for those centers.
It was found to be practically problematic to update the fixed asset register in keeping with those 
purchases.
During the year 2021, the revaluations of musical instruments were carried out, in which exercise the fixed 
asset register was updated in relation to those instruments. During the year 2022, the audit of the other 
items will be undertaken and I will take action to update the fixed asset register accordingly. 

(ii)  From the year 2022, a register in relation to the money retained and the advance money has been 
included in the Excell format in the computers. Action will be taken to maintain the said register from the 
year 2023 onwards. 

(iii)  I would like to point out that as almost half of the retention money over Rs. 17 million held in the 
Account of the Ministry has not been under settlement, the retention money in relation thereto has not 
been subject to clearance either. Furthermore, the respective departments have been kept informed to take 
necessary action to settle the other retainer dues as well, promptly within the year.

(iv)   By the Cabinet Decision No. CP/11/0157/539/005 dated 10 February 2011, approval has been granted 
for amending the National Youth Corps Act and also, for delegating the administrative and financial 
powers to the Director of the National Youth Corps under the overall supervision of the Secretary of the 
Ministry, considering the Youth Corps as a legally established entity until such time the relevant Act is 
amended.
Having acted upon accordingly, the National Youth Corps Authority Act to make the National Youth 
Corps an authority was drafted and submitted to the Department of Legal Draftsman in the year 2011. 
Thereafter, amendments were made to this draft bill on several occasions and the amended draft bearing 
number L.D.O 47/2011 has been handed over to the Department of Legal Draftsman.
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With the election of the new government in the year 2015, the work on the revised draft had to be 
discontinued and it is now observed that the revised drafting work has been initiated again from the year 
2019 with the assistance of the Department of Legal Draftsman. Following the intimation by the Secretary 
of the Ministry of National Policy and Economic Affairs to the Secretary of the Ministry of Justice that the 
National Youth Corps Authority Act is a bill that should be dealt with on a priority basis on the backdrop 
of the stalled onward proceedings of the matter, the Secretary of the Ministry of Youth and Sports by 
his letter dated 30.06.2021 has informed the Legal Draftsman that the draft bill already sent should be 
treated as the final amended bill and there would no other amendments to be followed. Later, the Attorney 
General's Department has sent its observations and amendments on the draft bill to the Department of 
Legal Draftsman on 24 September 2021. The draft bill prepared according to the said amendments has 
been forwarded to the Attorney General's Department by the Department of Legal Draftsman on 16 
November 2021. The Attorney General, after having observed the said draft, has recommended in his letter 
dated 22 February 2022 that the provisions of this draft were not in contravention of the Constitution and 
not subject to any prohibition or limitation enacted by the Thirteenth Amendment to the Constitution and 
could be made effective through the Parliament.

Subsequently, it was sent for the approval of the Cabinet of Ministers, and in spite of the move, it was again 
subject to a drawback as the portfolios of the Cabinet of Ministers with the Minister of Sports and Youth 
Affairs saw changes right alongside the circumstances cropped up in the country. Necessary arrangements 
as of now have been made to submit the relevant draft to the Cabinet of Ministers for approval under the 
initiative of the present Minister of Sports and Youth Affairs.

(v) Following the establishment of the National Youth Corps Council in the year 2015, necessary 
instructions and approval for the appointment of the committees had been sought by the Council Paper 
No. 33 at the council meeting held on 23.10.2015 in order to appoint 03 committees to administer the 
affairs of the council in accordance with section 2 (4) of the Act, and, 03 committees had been appointed 
as Vocational Training Committee, Youth Development Committee and Placement Committee. For that 
purpose, 03 members of the council had been recommended for the respective committees in the year 
2017. Even though 03 committees were appointed and carried on accordingly, due to the fact that the 
03 committees had to be appointed from time to time because of the periodic change of the members of 
the council and also owing to the fact that there were problems up against the allocation of provisions 
to the committee members, it is noted that the continuation of such committees properly was found to 
be a failure. However, a proposal regarding the re-appointment of these committees was discussed at the 
council meeting held in January 2022. There too, the problems relating to the allocation of provisions were 
also discussed among other things and it was stated that necessary instructions regarding the appointment 
of committees would be issued in the future. Accordingly, action should be taken to appoint the said 
committees to be operative actively in the future in pursuance of the approval of the National Youth Corps 
Council.

(vi) Subjects of Information Technology and English Language were taught to the trainees joining the Life 
Skill Course of the National Youth Corps. Advanced certificate courses were implemented through the 
Sri Lanka International Buddhist Academy (SIBA) with the aim of providing a valuable certificate in the 
subject of IT and English Language to the trainees who are joining in the life skill course.

This course was introduced as a basic foundation to enter higher education for the trainees who did not 
have a path to higher education after leaving the schools with different educational levels and the course 
certificate concerned has provided the opportunity for the trainees to expose themselves with the required 
basic qualifications and interest in the field of IT and English Language leading to degree courses at SIBA.
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The University Grants Commission only approves the implementation of the degree courses and for that 
purpose, an entity must fulfill the relevant requirements as an educational institution and it takes a lot of 
time and cost to comply with it. Moreover, according to the Act No. 22 of 2002, the National Youth Corps 
is an institution whose primary objectives are youth development, job training, and vocational education, 
and as such, there has been no opportunity and approval to implement degree courses approved by 
the University Grants Commission as yet. And also, the University Grants Commission does not grant 
approval for the short-term courses (certificates and diplomas) to this point of time, and hence, there is no 
scope for implementing short-term courses directly approved by the University Grants Commission.

	 Even though there are government institutions that run short-term courses for young people, 
it is a matter of the trainees' wishes to go for the National Youth Corps courses instead of making it to 
such institutions. The government institutions that implement such courses treat the pass in the G.E.C. 
O/L Examination as a minimum qualification in referring the trainees to their courses of training in 
Information Technology and English language and the majority of trainees who come to us are school 
leavers who are down with failed results in the G.E.C. O/L and A/L Examinations, and as such, most of 
the children will be left behind losing the opportunity to join in the courses of such level. There is also a 
likelihood of tendency that causes to spring up many a social and economic problem in the country due to 
the young people being left alone in frustration, youth unrest and the tempted engagement in anti-social 
activities.
 
For the process of implementing courses in Information Technology and English Language through such 
government institutions, it usually takes a long time for the respective institutions to come to terms with 
each other in the established structures, circulars, terms and conditions and follow other additionally 
required measures when two government institutions enter into an agreement with necessary approvals 
across the institutional structures of their own. Likewise, by spending such a long period of time to 
provide courses of training that are recognized and can be extended and referred to the degree level for the 
benefit of the trainees who come to us, it can also give rise to a loss of opportunity in availing an efficient 
and effective service to the trainees and providing a certificate of a level that is recognized with added 
possibility to reach the degree level, which indeed is supposed to be our objective. 

(vii)  Even though 10,000 trainee recruitments were expected during the year 2021, only 8043 of such 
recruitments were actually possible. According to the action plan for the year 2021, it was expected to 
provide vocational training under a scholarship worth Rs. 100,000/- in cash for the benefit of about 3300 
trainees for the current year. Accordingly, 30 trainees per group selected under a streamlined method 
from the training centers were sent for professional training by the National Youth Corps. I would like to 
produce the instruction sheet (as Annex 02) in that regard, which contains the criteria required for the 
vocational training method put into implementation at the center level.

Those trainees who were not eligible for this scholarship were given the opportunity to apply for the 
vocational training courses conducted by the government free of charge. Reasons for not going to 
vocational training after the completion of the preliminary course of the National Youth Corps include the 
trainees going to higher education, getting a job, venturing into self-employment or business activities, or 
migrating to overseas.

The main problem that had an impact primarily for not being able to get the exposure of the expected 
number of students for vocational training was the situation caused by the Covid - 19 pandemic outbreak. 
Also, the causes such as non-conduct of the government examinations (G.C.E. A/L & G.C.E. O/L) at the 
scheduled timelines, imposition of travel and movement restrictions, transportation problems and non-
commencement of the courses in vocational training institutes during the expected periods of time were 
attributable, leading to students' enrollment and referral to vocational training not being able to get on to 
the track as expected.
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(viii) The National Youth Corps used a regularized system for 30 children from one training center in 
one group to provide paid vocational training. A scholarship was provided on the basis of a maximum 
amount of Rs. 100,000/- per selected student. Permission was granted to select courses for the students 
in accordance with the approval of the Chairman and the Council. If the course fee is Rs. 100,000/- or 
more, the National Youth Corps will pay a maximum of 100,000/- and if it is less than that, the full amount 
involved will also be made available. A course of action to monitor the progress of the trainees until the 
conclusion of the course concerned is set in motion and a follow-up sheet for the purpose of gathering 
and monitoring information on the future placements of trainees to the respective jobs too is being under 
study and preparation as of now. I would like to produce the relevant format to that effect (as Annex 03). It 
is informed that I will see to the recurrence of issues of such nature not taking place in the future, having 
paid special attention to the issues pointed out by you.

	 (ix) In the face of the rapid spread of the Covid - 19 pandemic during the year 2021, it was not 
possible to continue the course related studies started during this period, and the training centers had to 
be temporarily closed due to the health rules imposed by the central government. Amidst the challenges 
in the country during this year, the National Youth Corps commenced its activities of study via online 
method for the first time. With the objective of making this online mode started as a new initiative more 
successful, it was arranged to provide free SIMs and free online data for the young men and women 
trainees. Through this exercise, an opportunity evolved to carry on with the course related activities of 
study uninterruptedly and conclude such courses of study on a successful note within the stipulated period 
as scheduled.
 
It was reported that, in the conduct of the activities of study through the online mode, a significant 
number of trainees dropped out of the course due to the restrictive transmission in local telephone signals 
as well as owing to economic setbacks they confronted with. Also, due to reasons such as the maintenance 
of personal distance and the adherence to health rules and regulations required by the Covid-19 situation 
in the country during the said period, the training activities could not be carried out as planned, 
nevertheless, even in the face of the rampant Corona pandemic situation, the activities of course study 
were put into operation through the online mode. I would therefore like to inform you that, through this 
effort, the desired objectives could be achieved successfully to some extent by being able to complete the 
course related educational activities meaningfully.

(x)  The National Youth Corps started providing language training from the year 2022. Accordingly, the 
teaching activities of the Chinese, Japanese and Korean languages are put to practice as set out below.
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Language Courses Province District Training Center Number of  
Students taking part 

Japanese  
Language   -  
(JLPT 04/NAT 04)

Sabaragamuwa Kegalle Galigamuwa 36
Central Kandy Gampola 35
North Central Anuradhapura Galenbindunuwewa 37
Southern Hambantota Weeraketiya 34
Western Gampaha Divulapitiya 42

Colombo Headquarters 62
Rajagiriya 86

Course conducted via online method 45
Number of Trainees following the Course 377

Chinese Language Central Kandy Senkadagala 26
Matale Dambulla (Batch I 

2022)
44

(Batch II 2022) 72
North Western Kurunegala Mawathagama 14
Southern Galle Galle 24
Sabaragamuwa Kegalle Kegalle 25
Uva Badulla Bandarawela 16
Western Gampaha Katunayake 20

Number of Trainees following the Course 241

Korean Language North Western Puttlam Wennappuwa 10

Number of Trainees following the Course 10

Full Total 628

Col. Dharshana Ratnayake RWP RSP
Chairman
National Youth Corps
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